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Financial Highlights

BHE-T-—MFE=A=+—ALFE
Year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
€<= g
(Restated) Change
KERE(EHTT) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$'000)
Was Revenue 1,846,175 1,793,552 3%
bR E1 A A Profit before tax 105,931 121,135 -13%
RArlERFAEA Profit attributable to equity holders
JE(E R of the Company 81,368 103,933 -22%
BEHBE Total assets 3,896,487 3,804,862 2%
fR R A Shareholders’ funds 2,895,126 2,853,253 1%
BEITH A Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
mEVEEFE Net current assets 1,680,797 1,702,701 -1%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
ERREREF CEN) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 12.9 165 -22%
BRIRESE CEN) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 7.0 85 -18%
SREEFECET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.6 46 0%
FEKLER KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FHRR R i B ¥R K (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 2.8 3.7 -24%
FHEELERRE (%) Return on average total assets (%) 2.1 2.7 -22%
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Shareholders’ Calendar

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
24 September 2014 (Wednesday) at 4:00 p.m.

Register of Shareholders
Closure of Register (both dates inclusive)
For attending AGM 22 — 24 September 2014

(Mon — Wed)
For final dividend 3 —7 October 2014
(Fri — Tue)
Dividend (per Share)
Interim Dividend HK3 Cents
Paid on 15 January 2014 (Wed)
Final Dividend HK4 Cents

Payable on or about 16 October 2014 (Thu)
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Business Review

The Group registered a small 3% turnover growth for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 to HK$1,846 million (2013: HK$1,794 million).
Profit attributable to equity holders declined by 22% to HK$81 million
(2013: HK$104 million).

This financial year has witnessed the change-over of the Chinese
leadership ranks. Inflation remained high in China, with excess lendings
leading to a runaway asset bubble, prompting the Central Government
to tighten monetary policies, resulting in a depressed domestic market.
Although the Central Government mildly relaxed credit during the
second half year to stimulate the economy, it still could not overcome
the general impacts of macro adjustments. These factors, together with
escalating costs, made China a challenging operating environment.
In addition, the Group’s international business was also unavoidably
hampered by significant currency devaluations against the U.S. Dollar
happening in many developing countries.

Although the general market was weak, the Group shall however
continue to enhance its existing product design, improve quality and
stability, as well as increase market share in large- and ultra-large-
tonnage injection moulding machines. At the heels of shipping the first
4,500-ton two-platen injection moulding machine last year, the Group
followed up by delivering, on schedule, the first 6,500-ton two-platen
injection moulding machine. This represents an important landmark
in the Group’s development of ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding
machines.

In addition, the Group has successfully launched the full range of
MMX large-tonnage two-platen injection moulding machines that it
manufactures for Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic Technology
Co., Ltd. this year. This new product line satisfies the demands of
medium-to-high-end customers, both domestically and internationally,
in addition to making larger contributions towards efficiency, energy-
saving and reduced emissions.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FREREE
Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

Judging from recent economic indicators, the U.S. is expected to grow
at a slow pace in the coming year, but its budget deficit and fiscal cliff
issue as well as high unemployment will continue to plague recovery. In
Europe, even though the sovereign debt crisis appeared to be subsided
for now, unemployment rate throughout the region is lackluster and
heavy debt burden is seriously threatening the economic recovery of the
entire Eurozone. In anticipation of future deflation risks, the European
Central Bank recently dropped its base lending rate to the historic low
of 0.15%.

The Central Government in China is likely to introduce measures to
support the domestic industry in order to maintain growth. On the
other hand, however, their hands are tied with the need to curb the
real estate bubble and runaway inflation. On the whole, the Group
remains cautious regarding the China market for the coming year.
This is also confirmed by the economic data coming out of China for
the first quarter of this year, which showed unclear prospects amid
disappointing indicators. Even though the Central Government has
committed to rendering whatever aid necessary to ensure continued
economic growth, stubbornly-high inflation continues to cause high
spikes in overnight lending rates, which pose significant challenges to
the coming year's market environment. The Group is to continue to face
these challenges ahead with rigour and steadfastness, maintaining its
competitiveness through enhanced new product offerings and investing
in new international markets.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt
thanks to all shareholders of Chen Hsong Group, customers, suppliers,
business partners, banks for their long term support and the loyal and
industrious employees for their contribution over the years.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Group registered
total turnover of HK$1,846 million (2013: HK$1,794 million), a slight
increase of 3% over the previous year. Profit attributable to equity
holders decreased by 22% to HK$81 million (2013: HK$104 million).
Basic earnings per share is HK12.9 cents (2013: HK16.5 cents). The
board of directors recommended the final dividend payment for this
financial year of HK4 cents (2013: HK6 cents).

During the first half of this financial year, China witnessed a scheduled
change in its leadership ranks, with the new leaders adopting tighter
monetary policies. Interest rates and bank reserve ratios were kept high
in order to remove liquidity from the economy, which in turn caused
substantial credit tightness in the country. Thereafter, the Central
Government in China implemented a series of repeated tightening/
relaxing measures in a bid to combat declining Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) growth, lacklustre import/export and an escalating real estate
bubble. These cyclic actions caused China’s Purchasing Managers’
Index (PMI) to oscillate around the 50 threshold, only to finally drop
into sub-50 territory in the fourth quarter of this financial year (the first
quarter of 2014) and continued to trend downwards. With weaknesses
abound in the economy, domestic manufacturers in China lacked
the confidence to invest in new machinery. The Group, however, still
managed to squeeze out an overall minor growth albeit adverse market
conditions, mainly through stronger sales in its large-tonnage two-platen
injection moulding machines.

During the first half of this financial year, rumours of the U.S. winding
down its quantitative-easing program had caused widespread
devaluations in currencies of developing countries around the world.
The currency exchange rates of many such developing countries,
such as Brazil, Indonesia, Thailand and India, all of which are large
markets for injection moulding machines and which had maintained
loose monetary policies since the financial crisis, dropped substantially
enough to seriously affect the Group’s turnover in international markets.
Fortunately, the U.S. Federal Reserve’s rapid clarifications during the
second half succeeded in suppressing these rumours and alleviating
the wave of devaluations. Global market sentiments have improved
since, even though the currency exchange rates of many developing
countries are still below their original levels.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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BBk &
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

In recent years, the Group has successfully kindled growth in a number
of strategic international markets (such as Brazil, Europe etc.) by setting
up new wholly-owned subsidiaries and expending larger investment
efforts. Although these projects raised sales expenses, but they also
provided the Group with a firm foundation and platform in these key
international markets. The Group expects to see rapid growth in the
future resulting from these strategic investments.

In addition, the Group’s participation in the largest trade-show for
injection moulding machines in the world — the “K-Show” in Germany —
during the second half of the financial year also caused selling expenses
to increase. On the other hand, the Group has finally launched the
full range of MMX two-platen injection moulding machines that it
manufactures for Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic Technology
Co. Ltd. (“Mitsubishi”) after more than two years of tight cooperation
between the companies. The Group has already expended many
resources in overcoming the steep learning curve, and expects gross
margin to improve in the coming year.

Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year

P EI DL EZEL T ended 31 March 2014 is as follows:
2014 2013
(B¥gEr) (EEgET) b2
EFihig Customer Location (HK$ million)  (HK$ million) Change
PR KR R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,190 1,169 +2%
= Taiwan 145 114 +27%
H A /GHNER Other overseas countries 511 511 0%
1,846 1,794 +3%

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR
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China GDP growth dropped to 7.7% in 2013 — a fourteen-year low.
Although it is still higher than the official target of 7.5%, nevertheless
it has caused many concerns over the health of the Chinese economy.
New leadership in China adopted tight monetary policies which also
contributed to depressed market sentiments, suppressing China PMI to
below the 50 threshold. Although the Central Government implemented
a “reverse buyback” mechanism during the third quarter to alleviate the
credit condition, which had the immediate effect of pushing PMI above
50 and arresting the constant Producer’s Price Index (PPI) decline, PMI
nevertheless fell below 50 once again in January 2014 and had been
trending downwards since. These indicators suggest that China has a
structural weakness in its domestic economy which is not easily solved
via simple monetary manoeuvrings.

China export growth has long been declining, and the wide-spread
currency devaluations of developing countries during this financial year
further caused export growth to drop to historical single digit lows — to
4.3% in April 2013, close to zero in May and -2% in June. Even though
export growth rebounded somewhat during the second half year, it was
still persistently stuck in low territory — an accurate reflection of the
increasingly difficult conditions of China’s export sector.

The Group faced difficult market environments in China due to the
negative factors in both domestic and international markets. On the
other hand, the Group managed to partially offset these negative
influences via stronger sales of its large-tonnage two-platen injection
moulding machines, finally registering a minor growth of 2% in turnover
to HK$1,190 million (2013: HK$1,169 million).

Riding on the impressive growth during the first half of this financial
year, the Group’s Taiwan business continued to benefit from economic
recovery in Europe and the U.S., with turnover of this financial year
rising 27% to HK$145 million (2013: HK$114 million).

For international markets, as rumours spread during the first half of
this financial year regarding the potential ending of the U.S. Federal
Reserve’s quantitative-easing program, many developing countries saw
their currency exchange rates plummeted. In particular, South East
Asian currencies generally depreciated more than 10%, with some (e.g.
India) dropping to historical lows. Similar devaluations also plagued

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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BBk &
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

many South American countries. Although the U.S. Federal Reserve
immediately dispelled with the rumours during the second half year,
causing the U.S. Dollar to fall rapidly in currency exchange markets,
many developing countries are still “under-water” with regards to their
currency exchange rates compared to the beginning.

Although this wave of large-scale, global currency devaluations
temporarily affected the Group’s international business, impacts started
to recede during the second half year. At the same time, the Group’s
new wholly-owned subsidiaries in strategic markets (such as Brazil,
Europe etc.) also gained traction and began to yield expected returns
with strong growth prospects, especially for Europe where sales growth
was more than 50%. As a result, the Group succeeded in compensating
for its first-half shortfall in international markets and registered total
annual turnover of HK$511 million (2013: HK$511 million), flat with
last year.

During this financial year, the Group completed launching the entire
series (from 1,300-ton to 3,000-ton) of MMX large-tonnage two-platen
injection moulding machines that it manufactured for Mitsubishi, with
much larger number of machines shipped this year. Due to Mitsubishi’s
extremely strict requirements regarding product quality and technical
details, the Group spent more than two years in cooperation with
them to streamline our manufacturing process and to overcome the
substantial learning curve and finally succeeded in bulk-production. It
is anticipated that the MMX model should contribute more significantly
to the Group’s bottom-line in the coming year.

=Z MMX PR TUAE T 28 14
Mitsubishi MMX Large Tonnage Two Platen Injection Moulding Machine

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Development of Technologies and New Products

In the wake of shipping the then-largest injection moulding machine
made in China — a 4,500-ton two-platen — to a European customer last
financial year, the Group once again raised the ante by shipping its first
6,500-ton two-platen injection moulding machine during this year to a
Middle-East customer — the largest injection moulding machine made
in Asia at the time, and a highlight of the global industry. The machine
was held in high regards by its purchaser, who was highly satisfied with
its overall performance and quality. This achievement reaffirms the
Group as one of the leaders in the area of high-tech, ultra-large-tonnage
injection moulding machines.

AY

it

FE AR AR R E) — IR KA E BE)T 2814 -6500 8

SUPERMASTER Two Platen Advanced Servo Drive Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine-6500 ton

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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FERRREIE I A AEEBHREZEREZESZIE  Inthe areas of intelligent controls, the Group has actively co-developed

B EERSERBE T —RELENIEH]  with a leading German supplier of computer controllers, the next-

25 BATEEBIABEER - generation intelligent computer controllers which are at the testing
stage.

NEFE IS — R « PNEUTEHEST  The Group also started a number of optimisation projects for its existing
e Bl BETAKBREHZH —HKA  range of small and medium-sized injection moulding machines. A new
JTEEMEEE T BRESETISEE o generation of product lines will be introduced in the near future, sure to

lead the market once again as the existing products had.

IR

The Clven g Groce

EM150-SVP/3

SHRE=RAREBE LT B
EASYMASTER Third Generation Servo Drive Energy-saving Injection Moulding Machine
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TENERER Production Efficiency and Capacity

FYEHTITXBREF=ZHMEZRECELNT The third-stage development project of the Shenzhen Industrial Park
K =ZRAAEEREDMHIER T - is complete, with three large two-storey factory buildings ready for
FHELZEEESDE - HMEAANEBRIRMEL  installing production equipment. The new factories provide around
83,000 F F kA EEZER - FEMELZE 83,000 m? of operating space primarily for manufacturing ultra-large-
4,000WES LA FEIEB ARS8 - FERKH#  tonnage injection moulding machines of over 4,000-ton. The Group
BEEETSHEEMEAER - shall put these facilities on-line as market conditions demand.

P ot T g*m: :?‘

;

AR A E R — B TR ORYI)
Chen Hsong Flagship Manufacturing Base — Chen Hsong Industrial Park (Shenzhen)
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,681
million (2013: HK$1,703 million (restated)). Cash and bank balances
(including pledged deposits) amounted to HK$927 million (2013:
HK$867 million), representing an increase of HK$60 million over
last year. The bank borrowings were HK$290 million (2013: HK$232
million), increased by HK$58 million, which were short term loans
with floating interest rates for general working capital purposes. The
Group recorded a net cash position of HK$637 million (2013: HK$635
million), representing an increase of HK$2 million.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2014. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2014, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the amount of HK$83 million (2013: HK$80 million) were
pledged, including HK$41 million (2013: HK$41 million) for securing
certain loans granted by certain financial institutions in Mainland China
to independent third parties, HK$36 million (2013: HK$33 million) for
securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included in the trade
and bills payables, to suppliers, and HK$6 million (2013: HK$6 million)
to guarantee for payments of construction costs of industrial buildings
and rental of premises, and tendering of contracts.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital commitments of HK$36
million (2013: HK$104 million), mainly in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings and the purchases of production equipment in
Mainland China which are to be funded by internal resources of the
Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding. Funds,
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, New
Taiwanese dollars and Renminbi, are normally placed with banks in
short or medium term deposits for working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total foreign currency borrowings
equivalent to HK$45 million (2013: HK$82 million), for payments
to suppliers in Japanese yen and working capital in Taiwan. The
Group, from time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile
foreign currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to minimize
the risk.

During the year, net foreign exchange gains increased as compared
with last year because of the appreciation of Renminbi during the year.
The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is aware
that any fluctuation of Renminbi would have an impact on the net profits
of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, the Group provided guarantees to financial
institutions in connection with facilities granted to third parties
amounted to HK$116 million (2013: HK$79 million).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 2,700 (2013:
2,700) full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and
welfare packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive
pay levels. Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the
results performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Future Prospects

The coming year is one full of uncertainties.

Firstly, China’s economy is still stuck in an adjustment period, with
PMI dipping below the 50 threshold and trending downwards, as well
as persistently weak export growth. The Central Government adopts
tightening measures that result in a continued credit squeeze, and the
lack of liquidity is directly hampering investments capital equipment
and also leading to the weakening of the Renminbi at the beginning
of this year, although these measures are arguably successful in
alleviating the real estate bubble and escalating inflation.

At the same time, most developed countries in the world, except the
U.S. where recovery is still strong, are facing weakening economies. In
particular, the European Central Bank, in a bid to avoid falling into a
Japan-style deflation cycle after report a series of weak economic data,
dropped its lending rate from the previous historical low of 0.25% to
an even lower 0.1%. This essentially means that the European Central
Bank demands interest on its overnight deposits made by commercial
banks, and that the Eurozone is officially into “negative interest”
territory. The European Central Bank has thus become the first central
bank in the world to adopt a negative-interest monetary policy.

These uncertain factors raise the Group’s concerns regarding the
coming year, which is expected to be extremely difficult and challenging.
The Group believes, however, that it can continue to reap healthy
growth from a number of promising markets through its investments
in international markets and the launch of new products and new
technology.
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Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, 0BE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 90

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee
of College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr.
Chiang is also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s
Government and the Honorary President of The Research Centre for
Market-Economy of Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Electrical Appliance Industries
Association. Dr. Chiang founded Chiang Chen Industrial Institute
situated at his hometown of Heze City of Shandong Province in 1999.
He is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, Jp, aged 48

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is responsible for the management and business
development of the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various
subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. She
holds a bachelor degree of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has
extensive experience in production management, sales and marketing.
Ms. Chiang is an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
She is also a standing committee member of the Shenzhen Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman
of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and Vice-President of China
Shenzhen Machinery Association. Ms. Chiang is also the Vice-President
of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and a member
of Aviation Development Advisory Committee. She is a member of
the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with effect from 1 August 2012. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s daughter and the sister
of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Chi Kin CHIANG Bsc, aged 47

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group
Manufacturing with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the
manufacturing function of the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in Industrial Design
from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in industrial design,
working for a multinational company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang is the
Vice President of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association and
the honorary committee member of Hong Kong Mould and Product
Technology Association. He is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s son and the brother
of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG wB4, Bsc, aged 47

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG B5Sc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA,

aged 54

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Mr. Ng holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged
in financial management with several multinational companies. He
has extensive cross-border financial management, mergers and
acquisitions, and corporate development experience. Mr. Ng is
responsible for managing special projects and corporate governance
of the Group. He holds an honour degree in Economics at the London
School of Economics (University of London), a master degree of Applied
Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia), an MBA degree from
The City University Business School (England) and a Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle (Australia). Mr.
Ng is a Chartered Accountant, an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN B4, Bssc, aged 53

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land
Public Company Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand)
and a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited. Mr. Tan has over 20 years
experience in investment banking based out of New York, Hong
Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading financial
institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie and
BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. Mr. Tan was an Independent Non-
executive Director of Triyards Holdings Limited (listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited) during the period from 31 August
2012 to 1 September 2013. Mr. Tan graduated from the National
University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold
medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI Bsc, MBA, FHKIoD, aged 48

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa and
the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India
and Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University of
San Diego. Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the
emerging markets and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances
manufacturers in China — many of whom have in house moulding
facilities. He is the former Chairman for both the North Asia Region
and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr.
Lalvani is a member of the Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian
Cultural Council, a Director of Harvard Business School Association of
Hong Kong Limited, a Director of the Chief Executives Organization and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Bernard Charnwut CHAN 6Bs, Jp, aged 49

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected
a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic
of China since January 2008. He is member of Executive Council
and a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of each of
the Council for Sustainable Development, the Advisory Committee on
Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the Council of Lingnan University
and the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council. In addition, he serves
as the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and
the Vice Chairman of the Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently an
Executive Director and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings
Ltd. (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited and an advisor to
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. He is
a Non-executive Director of City e-Solutions Limited, an Independent
Non-executive Director of each of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan since April 2007 has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited, which was delisted from
the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2009. He retired as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited on 3
May 2011 and resigned as a Non-executive Director of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. on 5 June 2014, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Michael Tze Hau LEE B4, mB4, aged 53

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in
1987 and has since held senior management positions in multinational
investment companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services
Limited and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia
Strategic Investment Management Limited in 1995. He was educated
in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin
College and a Master of Business Administration Degree from Boston
University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main Board and
Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is a Non-executive
Director of Hysan Development Company Limited, an Independent
Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
and Trinity Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange; the
Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director of OTC Clearing
Hong Kong Limited and a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the following
deviation:

Code provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors of
the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the
chairman and managing director of the Company are not required to
retire by rotation.

Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, aB™ (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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Note:
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 16 to 19
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.

Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities
of the Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings throughout the year at
approximately quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and
the operating and financial performance of the Group. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings
in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to
all directors for all regular Board meetings, and all directors are given
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft
minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all directors for comments.
Minutes of Board meetings with details of matters considered by the
Board and decision reached are kept by the Company Secretary and
open for inspection by the directors.
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REZE_ZE—NF=A=1+—HIEZHEF During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, four regular Board
BER - AATIHREBTNAESER TSN meetings and one general meeting were held and the attendance
—RBEARE  BNEFZHFLHEETIW  record of each director is as follows:

T

EEREBHERY S8R | RRASHERH B XH
EEHE Number of Board Meetings Number of General Meetings
Name of Director Attended/Held Attended/Held
HITES
Executive Directors
BEBL(FE) 4/4 1/1
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)
BBt (7TEAA%) 4/4 1/1

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)

LR 4/4 /1
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

R EAE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

RIRESSE 4/4 /1
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRE L& 4/4 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI 5E4 4/4 171
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PRES B 4/4 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

MFELE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

22 EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



EEREHeEENERENERZXMHRNESR
ERAHMELREMERMBEST - &
BEFOAERNSEZRXMHREHEER -
RAIEZENBR NSRBI EXRER &
RBARRXN - IEESFAMEARIMWE
MERAMRS - UERESRBEFNER
MAINRGIDERET -

EEEIRE

ARRIERERRITHRA B RAEE XK
SIEZBEEBEEERR  AREEFR
REBRFTIRIE 2 EE -

EFERATHAR

BERBLAEZRIR BERBXKLIA/AR
ATHRAEE - TEETHREHZ ACDRE
RE - AEREEFEERRARZBE MM

E/gEO

TREEAEE Y BECEHE RS ER
MHE  FEEERRESEERANE
ff o

TREHAEEEANEEMER - $IFTBER
REFEER  THEERENHY TEHRES
ERERAN ) SRS R o

BYFIITES

ARRAREBBYIFRTESED BARRRL
REE EHATHE=F  XAREAR
A2 ARIMARE WERE N A BEEE -

EHEEEERAT 2014 F3R

TEEBRES
Corporate Governance Report

The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days
before the date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board
papers and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that board procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Chen CHIANG is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure
their accountability and responsibility with respect to the management
of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the business
of the Group, policy making and corporate management and the
implementation of strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board with
the support from the Management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and
assessed the individual independent non-executive director’s annual
confirmation of independence and considered all independent non-
executive directors remained independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders on
connected transaction to be approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been
giving to the Board and the Board committees.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents,
the policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory
regime and the business development of the Company. To keep
abreast of the responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted covering the topic
of new statutory provision and requirements under the Listing Rules
during the financial year ended 31 March 2014. Apart from what the
Company had arranged, some of the directors also attended other
external training seminars.
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The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
training undertaken by them from time to time. Based on the details so
provided, the training undertaken by the directors during the financial
year ended 31 March 2014 is summarized as follows:

SMERHT
HEERE e HRE
(EBEYK - E2ET - ZHRRLEER
Reading Materials/Journals, Attending
Briefings/Seminars/Conferences
(Relevant to the Business,
BEENA 2EBE Directors’ Duties, Regulatory
Name of Director Factory Visit & Corporate Governance)
HITES
Executive Directors
BEELT(ZE) X v/
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)
BBt (TTEAEEE) v v/
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)
BEREE v v/
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
EHRR LA v v/
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
REERE v/ v
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
BIFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BREE S S v v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANI 5£ 4 X v/
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PRES B e v v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
MFEXRE v/ v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

25



26

ERERRESE

Corporate Governance Report

ARPDEREMBESENHRARKE (T
BRRFR)BTEERARARESTNRE
ZHERK o S EFEERBERIERE
ENMBERRARARSEBEEEENE
MAMEMERALE  WARERBERZERE
RIBAIARAT]

EEEHXRS
ARPERERTETEFRIEB—ETR
STAN(TTTRST AL - BRSBTS
BT EMETAESETEFR NG
AN (TMRESTRI ) ZIRERERR © A
RAMEEEFFELREEH - ARAHER
REBEFRNBE-_T—NF=A=+—HItZ
MBEFEER - —BEEBTTAT R MIEET A
FIMRE °

EREEE
EREZEEN—NNNFKIL - RAFRES
HE - ERZE SN EBENBIIENTT
EEAnish LALVANISLAE ~ BREC o4 - RS
BIEAERFFESLE o Anish LALVANISSAE &
ZEEXF o

ERLZEENACRERAARABLAN
HBERENZH - WZEBAEASEYKE
WM NEREAERIE - I HERA QR HEINE
THENEER - BERZESREXSECTE
RARR R FTZ AR

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR

Confirmations have been received from all the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors have
disclosed to the Company their interest as director and other offices in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
in a timely manner and have updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company,
after having made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all
directors have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code of Conduct and the Model Code throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2014.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN,
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE. Mr. Anish
LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating
to the Group’s financial reporting and internal control and overseeing
the Company’s relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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REE—_ZT—NF=A=+—H Jtzﬁﬁﬂlﬁ The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions) during
TN BREZEEHBITMAEH (AR  the financial year ended 31 March 2014 to review with the Company’s
i) EARATINI RINEZBEMEMA%E internal and external auditors, the Group’s internal controls and
2 NERES IR MBI FS S8 RAHEIE - §47  financial results and related matters. The attendance record of each
BEZEZEgNE 2 HFLEEINT member is as follows:
EREEENE BERE, &8 RE
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BIKHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Anish LALVANI 5c4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PR S
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
PRES BT
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FIFEsE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee
had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external

auditors;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

e approved the 2013/2014 Internal Audit Plan;

e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;
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e reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group;

e reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function; and

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE, and the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the
Committee Chairman. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the remuneration packages of executive directors and
senior management and to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Group with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as duties and responsibilities of the executive
directors and senior management and the amount of salaries paid by
comparable companies.

Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, allowances,
performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements of
this annual report.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year ended 31 March 2014. The attendance record of each member is
as follows:

FHEESERE

Members of Remuneration Committee

BRE, EBRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BIEHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors
PRE B LA

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

BREE S Se 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI 54
Mr. Anish LALVANI

MFEHE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

THABRITES

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
BBt

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

171

171

171

171

171

REBEE-ZF-NF-A=t—HILZMEF
ER HFHZEeFERTES(RKAN
BREEAR) 2@ANKRAREANTE
RITHARE 2 2H R - AT RBHITES
ZHERICAARIFRATERT2EE - L&
EEHER LMERAZHIMRE -

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed and approved matters relating to the
salaries and bonus of the executive directors (also being the senior
management of the Company) and the fee of the independent non-
executive directors after assessing their individual performance and
in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. No individual director took part in voting his/her own
remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr.
Anish LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze
Hau LEE. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
updated and approved by the Board in June 2013 to bring them in line
with the amendments on Board Diversity made to the Listing Rules and
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and making recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) for recommendation
to the Board for approval.

The Board adopted the Policy in June 2013 which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Policy is summarized
below:

e In reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider a number of aspects of the Board diversity, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
(the “Board Diversity Criteria”).

¢ |n identifying qualified individuals to become Board members, the
Nomination Committee will consider the Board Diversity Criteria.

e Board appointments will be based on merit and contribution the
chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

e The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the implementation of
the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Committee will participate in the assessment and
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. Individuals,
suitably qualified are identified and nominated to the Board. The
selection criteria for Board membership include professional expertise,
high standards of relevant skills, high levels of integrity and business
ethics, demonstrable competence together with the Board Diversity
Criteria as required by a director of a listed company. A candidate to
be appointed as an independent non-executive director must meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2014. The attendance record of each member is as
follows:

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

REZESHE HERE ERRE
Members of Nomination Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BREE H S 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI 4t 4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI

BREBEE 11
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FFELE 1/1

REBEE-ZT-NF=A=t—HILZMEF
BN REZBecBHAAWESTROR
B AR - FHEEFRITER 28
T HER-TE-=FRREFAEG L&
BEREMABEETESNRABEREH
PR RA R B BR] 2 BAEH E LXK
TEZRALME -

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Nomination
Committee had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors, approved the nomination of the retiring
directors to seek for re-election at the 2013 Annual General Meeting
and reviewed and recommended the updated terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee and the Policy to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI and Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, and one executive director,
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee
Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

R AR AR RIESTRESASTEI R developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
RAREEZ NI - to the directors and employees of the Company and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

REZZZE—NNF=A=1+—HIEZHKF The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
ER PEEARLESERITMANEH 31 March 2014. The attendance record of each member is as follows:
Ik B 2 HE ek s 5T -

TEERZEERE FERE BB

Members of CG Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

FFERE 2/2

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE K Se 4 2/2

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI 44 2/2

Mr. Anish LALVANI

ﬁ% =] /u\%i 2/2

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

HITEE

Executive Director

REZERE 2/2

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the CG Committee
had reviewed and approved the board evaluation questionnaire for
completion by the directors on an annual basis, reviewed the corporate
governance compliance status of the Company, the board evaluation
questionnaires completed by the directors, the compliance with the
Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees
and the training and continuous professional development records of
directors and senior management.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

External auditors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2014 amounted to a total of HK$2,217,000, of which HK$2,029,000
was incurred for audit services and HK$188,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2014 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group which were prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2014 is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 53 to 54 of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Group has established internal controls in material aspects
of its business. The internal control system comprising a well-
designed organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. The management, which comprises senior staff and
operating heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for
the design, implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The
Board oversees internal governance and the management’s activities.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. Through the Audit Committee
and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 which also included
the consideration on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major
role in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards
and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent
auditing of the activities of different business units across the Group.
The Group's Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit activities
annually and submits the internal audit plan to the Audit Committee
for review and approval. Regular internal audit reports are presented to
the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective actions are properly
followed up.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and have day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She reports to the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer. All directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
have the right to requisite the directors to convene a special general
meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
special general meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%) of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a special
general meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of Bermuda Companies Act, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders or of at least 100 shareholders in number of
the Company, may put forward any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at a general meeting of the
Company by sending the requisition together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks before the general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, shareholder
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging
at the head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with
the written consent of the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days before the
date of such general meeting. Procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director are posted on the website of the
Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders. To enable the
shareholders and investors have timely access to updated information
about the Group, the Company’s website (www.chenhsong.com.hk)
contains important corporate information, annual and interim reports,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and final results. Face-
to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and
investment analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive
equal access to information at the same time, inside information is
released by publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business days
prior notice is given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chairmen of the Board committees (or in their absence,
other members of the committee) are available to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, accounting policies and
auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions set
out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote of the meeting were
by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 55 to 159 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents
per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 7 October 2014. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, the final dividend will be payable to shareholders on or
about 16 October 2014. The proposed final dividend, together with the
interim dividend of HK3 cents per ordinary share paid on 15 January
2014, makes a total dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share for the
year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 164 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements of the Group.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Issued Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company is set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 59 to 60 of
this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$178,390,000, of which HK$25,221,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.
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Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$31,000 (2013: HK$81,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existing during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GB™ (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG #

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN +@#
Mr. Anish LALVANI +@#

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN +"@*

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE +@#

* Members of the Audit Committee

*  Members of the Remuneration Committee

@ Members of the Nomination Committee

*  Members of the Corporate Governance Committee
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In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN and
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 16 to 19 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the changes in the information of the
directors of the Company subsequent to the date of the 2013/14 Interim
Report of the Company are set out below:

(1) Ms. CHIANG Lai Yuen ceased to be a member of the Standing
Committee on Directorate Salaries and Conditions of Service of The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region with
effect from 31 March 2014.

(2) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be a non-executive director

of New Heritage Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 5 June 2014.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2014, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the Company required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

HAERQF]

ERTEER

REBER 2B

2 rEw Approximate

EEME Interest in percentage of the

EEHA Nature of ordinary st Mf3¥ Company’s issued

Name of director interest shares Total Notes ordinary shares

BE f&A 3,980,000 3,980,000 (1) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Personal

Hi 398,013,620 398,013,620 (3) 63.12%
Other

B f&A 5,000,000 5,000,000 (1) 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal
BEE EA

Chi Kin CHIANG Personal 2,078,000 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%

EHR fELA 666,000 666,000 (1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal

BREE EA 484,000 484,000 (1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal

Anish LALVANI fEA 220,000 220,000 (1) 0.03%
Personal
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(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interests in ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments

2 EER kR Limited (“CH Investments”):
HERERE
2RITRG
2B
hi:vaviped Approximate
ERME = percentage of the
EEpR Nature of 54 Interest in issued shares of
Name of director interest Capacity shares CH Investments
BE Hfth Z2REEFTIHIIA 58,220,300 100.00%

Chen CHIANG Other Founder of

(i) ARAZEZRERBLIRAATE
NHIAEEE A B RIR D 2 #E s

discretionary trust

(i) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed
to be interested in the shares of the following associated

corporations:

{EAEEEE AR

ERE#TRG

ZBHABEDE

Approximate

percentage of the

relevant class of

issued shares of

HELERE Rz xR iz associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited 1 mk (3), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

B (PR REBRAA 21 3), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment BRERERTERN,
Company Limited 2 non-voting
deferred shares

ERYnEERRATR 5,000,000 fx (3), (4) 100.00%

Chen Hsong Logistics Services
Company Limited
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{EAEEEE AR
ERIE#TRG
ZHMOBDE
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

S EE SR RED 2R MisE associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
EHHEERAER AR 50,000,000 % (3), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery IS RRELER D

Company, Limited 50,000,000 non-voting

deferred shares

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1 IR A E R i fn 3) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

METBERAR] 2ME AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares
EBAR AT 2B (3), (5) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares
BREEEFR AR 2B (3), (4) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares
ERREBRAA 1 AR EmAR 3), 4) 100.00%
Global Asia Investments Limited 1 ordinary share
BN BERAR] 2B mAR (3), (5) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares
Gondmyne Limited 100,000 f% E imAx (3), (4) 100.00%

100,000 ordinary shares

Granwich Limited 1A% @ (3), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

BERERBEIRET R 52,570,000 % 38 i% (3), (4) 75.10%
FERTEBRAR] 52,570,000 ordinary shares

Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services
Limited
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{EAEEEE AR
ERIE#TRG
ZHMOBDE
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

S EE SR RED 2R MisE associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
Kadom Limited 2 B AR (3), (4) 100.00%

EERRERR AT

KCI Investments Limited

HERERER AR

Keyset Development Limited

= BERAR]
Koyoki Limited

BREREBREBRAT
Maxford H.K. Investments Limited

KIEBRAT]
Mikia Limited

REAERAR]
Mogin Limited

k5B R A R]
Parot Limited

FEMLARAA
Potachi Limited

Pro-Team Pacific Limited

FMEBER AT
Rikon Limited

EHEEEERAT 2014 F3R

2 ordinary shares

1R RAR (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

10 A E Bk (3), (4) 100.00%
10 ordinary shares

2 BE AR (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

1 RE AR (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2B E (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 P (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 RE AR (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2R E AR (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

1 RERAR (3), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2 B E AR (3), (5) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares
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{EAEEEE AR
ERIE#TRG
ZHMOBDE
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

S EE SR RED 2R MisE associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

&R E R AR 2 RE AR (3), (B) 100.00%

Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares

FalEBRAF] 2P (3), (5) 100.00%

Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares

SEARRQA 2ME AR (3), (5) 100.00%

Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares

Tatiara Investment Company Limited 2 g Eimp (3), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

mElIREARAR] 1 IRE AR (3), (4) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited

Bt

EREIANERER AN DR

o

(1

b R

(2) Utk J5Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited FE#
#5752 #z% » i Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limted BB ETEXEEES ([ES
ESZERAA - MZESHEAR
W E100% 2 BEITRMIER - 1R
BEFRAEGKRD  AREEEL
REEEAZVERTA  WEE
HT- AR IER G 2L
A MERIEREZ T2’

S o

Bl

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR

1 ordinary share

Notes:

(1) Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.

(2) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation
(“Charity Foundation”), which holds 100% interest in the issued
share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen
CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid discretionary
trust as he is the settlor of the discretionary trust and may be

regarded as founder of such discretionary trust.
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(3) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited
B EWILE100% 25 + Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited 8! &Clititrust
(Bahamas) Limited5e 2 # % - Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited BZ&ZH® 2 {57F
A IRBEFSF RS - R
EEtTDESES CMERTA
HEREL AR RHAEREES
ZEIIA - MR A S -

A
~
=
k=g

AEEDMHRERERA

Rl

ZE R R EEREEBGondmyne
Limited f##55 ©

% R R A B B Assetwise
Holdings Limited FEi# 355 °

BREXHEEEIN RZFT—-—HF=H
=t—R ARAEFLARZSTRABMRE
KA R R S E A HEEAE (& RESF K
HIEIRBIE XV ER) 2 Btn ~ HERER D S E S
RREARIEE L AERDIE 352 1RAER
KRR BRI RTF B E DM A2 (R AR S SOK
B BRBERETAMARTHEARE R
B P2 S SRR

EEREROIES ZEF

RER - ARABFHRESTHABRER
BT SITERE A -

fR EXFRIRBEESN - ARBHEEMMER
AIRF AL EST AL - BEARRE
EMHEBEARRREAEMEAER 2K
MEESFMER  MEE  KRHTBRABR
BF 2 BB ARM T\ Bz FRNF AR E
BAARBARRES 2 ALRHERN - TRETT
AR A FHER -

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR
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(3) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in which, by
virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested as
he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may be regarded as
founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Assetwise Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

No share options were granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors, chief executive or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the
year.
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EERNHFERB 2

R-Z—ME=A=+—8  BEEEHT
EERNEAREEREEF A R
EBHE M -

FERRRAEMALTRRG REER
Mz EHERKA

R-ZZE—NMF=ZA=+—H ARAES
RERITBRABRA  RIEES KIS K
FIGIEFEF2 AR BLMATRBE I EE
B& R R Efh A TR AR B 2 B D R8I (5
ZRERSOARIAT

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2014, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

REQBRGZHR Long positions in shares of the Company

LERANE|

ERTEER

2N B

ZERBRE Approximate

Number of percentage of the

BRREHE HER 54 ordinary MiaE Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares Notes ordinary shares

EIfIRE EnEAA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
CH Investments Beneficial Owner

BE EnEBA 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial Owner

EREEFTEZNIIA 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust

Chiangs’ Industrial RZIESER 2 s 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Holdings Limited Interest of controlled
corporation

Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Trustee

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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EARATF

ERITEER

ZHMOBDE

ZBERBE Approximate

Number of percentage of the

BREEREHE 51 ordinary MisE Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares Notes ordinary shares

David Michael WEBB Em#EEA 7,835,000 - 1.24%
Beneficial Owner

RREFNER 2 23,793,000 - 3.77%
Interest of controlled
corporation

IERERE TR (FE)BRAF] REKIE 52,268,000 4) 8.29%
Schroder Investment Management Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited Manager

Schroders Plc REEHER 2 52,268,000 4) 8.29%

Interest of controlled

corporation

Hst -

(1) WHEBEEMZE 2R —IRMDH - AR
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited A& =54 2 12
A MR ARBBRNEEER - MiZ
SHEBRG TyE B E AT H 8% @ Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited £ = iff % & 5 &
100% R MEFH -

BEBLIAZREESLHMERTA  RESE
HFREE D - BEE LA R RRIERE
ESZKIA > MR SR ERBROFEE

N

E\

BRELTRBEBLZERE REFFR
HEHEY - BRELTURBERS 7 MR
BRANBEREIRAEZEBRND AR

N EEREER(BE) BRARMFZ
B —#Ef ) o B3 Schroders Plc &5 E1%
BER(BE)BRAFIZGEEREBA -
AR AN B BRI R B s o

EHEEBERAT 2014 FiR

Notes:

(1

(3

(4)

This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by
virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares
are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by
virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

This represents the same parcel of shares held by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Schroders Plc is deemed to have
interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being the ultimate beneficial
owner of Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited.
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REXFRBEEN R_F-—WUF=A
=t+—R BEETEMALTHEARFZ
Bt R AR RER D 2 R SOR B T A RCER R
RS M E IRDIZE 336 (R AR AP RIFZ
FaeffA o

BEALRS

AEBEEREERZ SRR S [BEE
ALTIZALANETRS - HERHTE
WRAKER B EEBBIZTIE —REEK
RERNFREBRIILZEH » FFABERHET
AT ERRMITE36 ©

MR ZIER LR TH [FHERER
2] BRI -

RIZ——F=R-1+/\B - BREAEK
CRYD BR AR (TEERIRII) 5832 1 A
CRID AR AR ([ EHEEBRRN ) (KAF]
ZEE2EWNBRAR) BT —HEHE(E
&) - REBEEWE - ARRREKE Q]
(BEEHEEMARIN) AIEBRS A MERR
YEREHM - AT ——FMHA—BR%H -
REP=F RBE_T-—NF=A=+—H
=B BFEE 2B M KFE - RIEE
R RBEN  FEAREASTHBAARY
31,000,000 7t (FBF X4 # 36,763,000 7T) °
BE_T-NF=A=+—HIFEZRS
SREX A 8,512,000 7T (T EIGER) ©

ZEMBER T —NE=A=1+—HBFH
& EWENERGRCRN T -MOE=
AZ+RNBEHABERNROTER]  B=F
—ENA— B AH=F((EHH

E
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly
relate to contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of
business, which contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms
and on an arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 March 2011, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) was
entered into between Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“CC-SZ") and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) Company, Limited
(“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Pursuant to the Master Agreement, the Company and its subsidiaries
including CHM-SZ would, on a non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from
CC-SZ for a term of three years commencing on 1 April 2011. The annual
aggregate value of purchase of steel under the Master Agreement for
each of the three financial years ended 31 March 2014 shall not exceed
RMB31,000,000 (equivalent to HK$36,763,000). The transaction value
during the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$8,512,000 (net of value added tax).

The Master Agreement had expired by effluxion of time on 31 March
2014 and the renewal master agreement was entered into by the same
parties on 26 March 2014 for a term of three years commencing on 1
April 2014 (the “Renewal Master Agreement”).
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Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates (which are also associates of
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company) together control the
exercise of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the entire equity interest of
CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-SZ is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Agreement and the Renewal Master Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 March 2014 under the Master Agreement and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (2) on normal commercial
terms; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s
auditors, to report on the above continuing connected transactions of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014 contemplated under
the Master Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 March 2014 disclosed above by the Group contemplated
under the Master Agreement in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules and stating that:

(1) the transactions have received the approval of the Board;

(2) the transactions have been entered into and conducted in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(3) the annual amount of the transactions has not exceeded the cap

disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 March
2011.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in
line with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate. The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of
the directors who are also senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 37 of this
annual report.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 55 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March 2014

CEETFor) (HK$’000) H15# Notes 2014 2013
Wz REVENUE 6 1,846,175 1,793,552
HERA Cost of sales (1,429,321) (1,371,194)
EH Gross profit 416,854 422,358
EH g A K M558 Other income and gains, net 36,115 32,687
HENDHETE Selling and distribution expenses (188,187) (179,982)
THRE Administrative expenses (131,504) (125,409)
E b S i HRE Other operating expenses, net (28,516) (26,640)
RhE RN Finance costs 8 (5,469) (5,610)
FE(EH & R A Share of profits less losses

s AR ET 18 of associates 6,638 3,731
BRBEADER PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 105,931 121,135
Frigfiz Income tax expense 11 (24,334) (16,325)
AEEHEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 81,597 104,810
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RABERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 81,368 103,933
AR Non-controlling interests 229 877

81,597 104,810

RATEZEEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

EEEsRER ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14

AR CGEM) Basic (HK cents) 12.9 16.5
e G#) Diluted (HK cents) 12.9 16.5

AEREMNREZRZBREFBENI BT

FRIFFE13

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

note 13 to the financial statements.

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
(geE:5)
CEEFT) (HK$°000) (Restated)
REERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 81,597 104,810
Htt2mEkE - (ZH) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
HBRE 14 BT E#T Other comprehensive income to be
DB reclassified to the income statement
H2E Kz in subsequent periods:
BEGINETS 2 Exchange differences on translation of
M 5 ZERE foreign operations 19,324 4,193
b B R Realization of exchange fluctuation
FHE B AT reserve upon deregistration of
ZER a subsidiary (2,918) _
1SR E 1% BRI =57 Net other comprehensive income to be
PEEREERZ reclassified to the income statement
Em 2wk Faa in subsequent periods 16,406 4,193
T e R E 1 B Other comprehensive income/(expenses) not
i by Y € to be reclassified to the income statement
Em2Eas - (F4) © in subsequent periods:
%EE?E%UTEZ Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
BEEF, (E8) obligations 1,180 (624)
AEEHMEEKE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HIRBE FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 17,586 3,569
AEEHASH TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
&S FOR THE YEAR 99,183 108,379
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
KARIERFERA Equity holders of the Company 98,621 107,433
FEIE IR Non-controlling interests 562 946
99,183 108,379
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZE—NF=/A=+—H As at 31 March 2014
“E-NE —E—=F ZT—=F
=ZA=+—8 =ZA=+—H MmA—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2014 2013 2012
(5&&E5) (sE&E5)
(E#EFor) (HK$'000) H15F Notes (Restated) (Restated)
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - E MEE Property, plant and equipment 15 1,018,019 960,533 914,373
JEfRF L EE R Prepaid land lease payments 16 46,684 42,994 44,707
Bk Goodwill 17 94,931 94,931 94,931
REEE AR ZI8E Investments in associates 19 32,706 28,657 24,801
REFIEEE Deferred tax assets 29 70,481 76,578 80,070
BEWE BER Deposits for purchases of items of
B property, plant and equipment 2,901 3,853 4,885
IR T 3K Pledged bank deposits 23 3,265 - 6,075
FEMBEELG Total non-current assets 1,268,987 1,207,546 1,169,842
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 813,107 842,327 897,375
JEUE 5 B RIRIR K Trade and bills receivables 21 831,402 833,561 721,349
& ERRIER Deposits, prepayments and
E b R EBR X other receivables 22 59,639 55,022 81,284
WIRRITFR Pledged bank deposits 23 79,473 80,280 76,943
ReRRTER Cash and bank balances 24 843,879 786,126 815,554
RENVE EERT Total current assets 2,627,500 2,597,316 2,592 505
RBaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
[ENE 5 REBERR Trade and bills payables 25 402,660 411,363 392,561
HiEAERR L Other payables and
JEFTRE accruals 26 229,189 222,646 229,948
HERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 290,203 231,625 213,045
FEIHIE Tax payable 24,651 28,981 60,096
mEN B EER Total current liabilities 946,703 894,615 895,650
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,680,797 1,702,701 1,696,855
BEAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
it =N CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,949,784 2910247 2,866,697

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZTE—HWF=A=+—H (continued)
As at 31 March 2014
—E-mE —T-=F =ZT-—-fF
=A=+—-8 ZA=+—H mA—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2014 2013 2012
(1&=7)) (5&E=5)
GEMFor) (HK$°000) Ki7E Notes (Restated) (Restated)
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TFRBHEL Defined benefit obligations 28 23,034 26,658 28,176
ELEFRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 11,736 11,010 10,786
JERBEEET Total non-current liabilities 34,770 37,668 38,962
BERE NET ASSETS 2,915,014 2,872,579 2,827,735
R EQUITY
KARERFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
EiEEE of the Company
BEITIAR Issued share capital 30 63,053 63,053 62,926
f#E Reserves 32 2,832,073 2,790,200 2,746,429
2,895,126 2,853,253 2,809,355
IR R Non-controlling interests 19,888 19,326 18,380
ERET TOTAL EQUITY 2,915,014 2,872,579 2,827,735

#7E Chen CHIANG
F /& Chairman

58  masEEARAF 2014 £

%t Lai Yuen CHIANG
7742 %, Chief Executive Officer
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GEEEERRE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_T-NF=-A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 March 2014
2014
RAAEREFAAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
) Ry EAEE ENgE F2R
ke EER fife fife B&
lssued  Shae  Capitll EAEE ZERE -REE  Bohnge REEA Non- &5
share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained 3 controlling Total
capifal  account  reseve  reserve  reseve  reseve  resenve  profits Total interests  equity
i (=5 (4E5) (fE=5)
(B%F1) (HKS000) Notes (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
R-E-=F At T April 2013
mA-H
MAZH As previously reported 63053 509,580 2% 50763 147473 2301 29128 179,745 2801488 19326 2880814
BhEEEY Prior year adjustments 22 - - - - - - - 82 82%) - (82%)
L As restated 63053 509,580 2% 50763 147473 2301 29128 1788510 283263 19326 2872519
KERER Profit for the year - - - - - - - 8138 81368 29 81597
KEREMET Other comprehensive income
& for the year:
BEEH Bxchange differences on
E3.v4 translation of foreign
ERZE operations - - - - - - 18991 - 18991 331934
EX2ERE Realzation of exchange fluctuation
Rit-1iE feserve Upon deregisration
NEZER of a subsiciary - - - - - - 299 -9 - 298
ERRAIES Actuarial gains on defined
LFERH benefit obligations - - - - - - -1l 1180 -1
KR Total comprenensive income
T e for the year - - - - - - 16013 M8 %6 02 99183
RERFHER Transfer from retained profis - - - iy - - - (447) - - -
TR Transfer of statutory
-HBRAZ feserve upon deregistration
g of a subsidiary - - - - 41 - - 2474 - - -
BR-T-=F Final dividend
ZR=1-At for the year ended
EE7RERE 31 March 2013 3 - - - - - - - 318 @18 - (3182
hERE Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (18916)  (18916) - (18916)
-1
A=A At 31 March 2014 63,003 509,580 6% 51210 144999 23p1F 307301 1816337 28%126 19888 2915014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

2013
RLAREFEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
) kit &4ERE EiZE FER
BE  BEE fife file B&
lssued  Shae  Capitl EAEE EEBE -REE Echange REEA Non- &G
share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained 83 controlling Total
capital  account  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  resenve  profits Total interests  equity
Jirid (35  (&E5) (i)
(B8F1) (HK$000) Notes (Restated) ~ (Restated) (Restatec)
RE--% At 1 April 2012
mA-HA
A2 As previously reported 62926 507,170 29 53000 147473 2301 87104 175659 2816960 18380 2,835,346
BEFEEY Prior year adjustments 22 - - - - - - - ey (el - (6l
EL] As restated 62926 507,170 2% 530 147473 2301 287104 1748981 2809355 18380 2827735
TEEER Proft for the year - - - - - - - 10393 103933 877 104810
REEENEE Other comprehensive income/
Wa/(3) (expenses) forthe year
palchs Exchange differences on
ES.v4 franslafion of foreign
ERZE operations - - - - - - 414 - 41 0 413
EERHES Actuarial osses on defined
LEEEE: beneft obiigatons,
L] as restated - - - - - - - 64)  (624) - (624)
KEE Total comprefensive income
BrEkG for the year - - - - - - 4124103309 107433 946 108379
B Issue of new shares Kl 127 2410 - - - - - - 25y - 25
ZailEg Transfer from retained profis - - - 612 - - - (612) - - -
ERERE Transfer of share option
REHE: 2 feserve upon the expiry
ERER of share option scheme - - - 2w - - ] - - -
Ha-T--f Final dividend
ZA=T-AL for the year ended
EEIRERE 31 March 2012 13 - - - - - - - (50340 (30340 - (5034
E Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (B (15,731) - (1573
WZF-=
AR AN 2B BB EOEY 25 S WA 2B BLO8 UBED 28R 0¥ 2805M

ZERERARREAVBARRRAZER

BEEABY2,832,073,000T(ZF—=
£ #152,790,200,000 7T (KR &EFI|)) -
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,832,073,000 (2013: HK$2,790,200,000 (restated)) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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GEHERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BT NWF—A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 March 2014
2014 2013
(JEE5)
(BFor) (HK$'000) H/5E Notes (Restated)
REXBCRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 52 A4 A Profit before tax 105,931 121,135
PR Adjustments for:
SN ®IN Finance costs 8 5,469 5,610
JE(EBE S N TEFIREE  Share of profits less losses of associates (6,638) (3,731)
F B HA Interest income 7 (14,611) (12,503)
e Depreciation 7 71,386 66,463
TEfF £ bR & T2 2 5 Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 7 2,815 1,819
HEME - BER&HE Loss on disposal of items of
ol it property, plant and equipment 7 64 152
B AR ZaF Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 (2,918) -
M - BE R&E Write-off of items of
2 5k property, plant and equipment 7 221 1,110
SRR B E 2R Write-back of aged liabilities 7 4,121) (5,907)
FERERRL 5 Write-back of impairment of inventories, net 7 (14,650) (22,048)
EWE 5 R EERER Impairment of trade and bills
BT receivables, net 7 355 382
143,303 152,482
FERL Decrease in inventories 35,268 69,117
BN E 5 R EHBIRN Increase in trade and
0 bills receivables (10,351) (122,281)
& FENFEREM Decrease/(increase) in deposits,
FEUBREFUR A (38 n) prepayments and other receivables (5,732) 25,625
BB 5 RERERR Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills
12, ORd) payables (1,991) 23,898
HAbFEBR R R FE T Increase in other payables
=Nl and accruals 13,821 1,054
FERERAEERD Decrease in defined benefit obligations (2,069) (1,966)
KEEA RS Cash generated from operations 172,249 147,929
BFE Interest paid (5,469) (5,610)
REFEFEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded 11
BREBEMER Hong Kong profits tax paid (1) (17,655)
R EGINIE Overseas taxes refunded 512 1,114
BEINIE Overseas taxes paid (20,863) (26,871)
KBRS RAFE  Net cash flows from operating activities 146,439 98,907
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
(FEES)
(EMFor) (HK$'000) H/5E Notes (Restated)
REEBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEEWME - BB Purchases of items of property, plant
B and equipment 15 (115,913) (113,508)

FERT 4 & g Additions to prepaid land lease payments 16 (6,053) -
HEME - BE&EE Proceeds from disposal of items of

FrS s8R property, plant and equipment 394 760
BHFILE Interest received 14,611 12,503
w—HEE N E B WA S Dividend received from an associate 19 3,148 -
BEWE  WEREE Decrease in deposits for purchases of

% items of property, plant and equipment 952 1,032
AE SR EE Bk R AR H Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with

HmR=EAH original maturity of more than

EEERR L/ (38h0) three months when acquired (15,024) 87,450
HEIRRITEZOR D (38 H0) Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits (987) 3,054
BEEBK 7S REFEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (118,872) (8,709)
MEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BT FTS A Proceeds from issue of new shares 30 - 2,537
HERITER New bank loans 195,120 150,000
ERIRITER Repayment of bank loans (130,124) (120,000)
BRI E Dividends paid (56,748) (66,072)
BEEBZHERAS Net cash flows from/(used in)

Omit) #%8 financing activities 8,248 (33,535)
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BE-T-ME=A=+—HILFE

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2014 2013
(ge=5)
CEEFT) (HK$°000) K17t Notes (Restated)
HeRASEEY NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
ZIEhnEEE CASH EQUIVALENTS 35,815 56,663
FUZHE Cash and cash equivalents
&fﬁ/\g{ﬁ% at beginning of year 752,186 694,233
R BB BT Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 6,292 1,290
FRZES CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
FBEEEEY AT END OF YEAR 794,293 752,186
ReRESEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
BEZDW CASH EQUIVALENTS
HEe RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 24 515,285 510,496
E SR R B R B Bank deposits with original maturity of
TR=EAZEBRFR less than three months when acquired 24 279,008 241,690
LEREREERMINZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
RERREEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 794,293 752,186
AE SR R R B Bank deposits with original maturity of
BB={EAzEBFHR more than three months when acquired 24 49,586 33,940
rE AR R 2 Cash and bank balances as stated in the
RE RIRTTHETT consolidated statement of financial position 843,879 786,126
EEEEBRAT 2014 F1H CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 63



BATSIR I 3=

Statement of Financial Position

R-ZTE—HWF=A=+—H As at 31 March 2014
(EEFT) (HK$°000) H15E Notes 2014 2013
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - B NRRE Property, plant and equipment 15 246 344
RETB AR ZI&E Investments in subsidiaries 18 739,926 734,384
SEMEVEERET Total non-current assets 740,172 734,728
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
— R B A RIBR X Due from a subsidiary 18 216,429 127,878
Al R B Ath FE IR SR Deposits and other receivables 22 723 780
RE RIBTTESR Cash and bank balances 24 8,911 69,590
MENVEEMEE Total current assets 226,063 198,248
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HAb IR Other payables and

JEFTEE accruals 26 4,917 6,342
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 210,000 150,000
BB EES Total current liabilities 214,917 156,342
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 11,146 41,906
EERE NET ASSETS 751,318 776,634
ez EQUITY
BT Issued share capital 30 63,053 63,053
1 Reserves 32 688,265 713,581
G TOTAL EQUITY 751,318 776,634

# & Chen CHIANG

F /& Chairman
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#EEZE Lai Yuen CHIANG
7T 48 %L Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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Bf 75 R R M Notes to Financial Statements

—ET-WFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014
222 HERIESEH 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

REBRANFEERBFEHRE B IRERA A The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

THTRI RAEUER] 2 BB B IME AR - first time for the current year’s financial statements.

BEUTEIRE AR -

£ 15 (&5]) BRTBHRELER HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
F1RBITEAL Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
BB B Reporting Standards — Government

=R~ Loans

ENEACCHD) BRIV BRELER HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
FIREToH Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
TA: FFE- Financial Assets and Financial
EHEEREH Liabilities
BB G

105 AP HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

F1L5% BELH HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

F12% BERMEEER HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

F10% - F115% BB TS %R HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

REL2W(BFT)  £105% - BE and HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance
s E 2R Amendments
F1HFEREE
B TR S ZER
F125K BT —
BEES

135 N EE = HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

BREGRER :

E 15 (1&3T) BEBSFTERE 15 HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
BRI BIRZH Financial Statements — Presentation of
2B EE Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Wz TEH#Z5)

2 199% (2011) 1ES 75 HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

2275 (2011) v 0 HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements
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R -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12, HKAS 19 (2011) and amendments to HKAS 1, the
adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single
control model used for determining which entities are consolidated.
To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an investor must have
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
The changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the
Group to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

22T BERINERE (&) 2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

ERBEAMBEREENF 0K AE
Bk A R E LR E R R
SEPTIEFI S STER

FEME BB HEEANE 105E AL Ak
BREENR_Z—=FNA—BEHZ
BEF R E R RN AERA & o

BEMBRELRE 1258 B M B
DA RERH BERARNMGEEER
MEBERE REREANEERER
Bt ERIE 27 WA & RIF LA EH
Zx o BAGHEREIIRRE EL A
Ay as BB G RTERIF 28 SN &
RAHIREN » R L% EE D
AZBHWBERTE - BERRE— T
BABRRYFEREMEL

FREHERIZE 15 (BRT) kB EE A
2EWEETIZEE S o ERREE
REAIENDB(REHER)2BH L
RAB (PIan—FREF AL 2 Wt F
B BRESIEBELEZELEZSE B
SREH T EDFELAENEDR
BEZERIWEFE) BETSEHN
DRERm AR (FIERERH S
ZHEERRRERAR T REF S
BIDFEY - ZFETERERD
WA EAEEREARRLERR - 476
Hib 2 mRas R 2 IFESIRRESL -
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(continued)

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to determining which investees are
controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the consolidation
conclusions of the Group in respect of its involvement with investees as
at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included
in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates.
It also introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. Details of the disclosures for associates are included in note 19
to the financial statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented
in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net
gain on hedge of a net investment, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net
loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified (for example,
actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments affected presentation
only and has had no impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
has been restated to reflect the changes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) changes the accounting for defined benefit plans.
The revised standard removes the choice to defer the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses. All actuarial gains and losses are required
to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income (“OCI").
The interest cost and expected return on plan assets used in
the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a net interest
amount under HKAS 19 (2011), which is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset at the
start of each annual reporting period. Prior to the adoption of HKAS 19
(2011), the Group elected to recognize actuarial gains or losses as
income or expense over the expected average remaining service
periods of the employees participating in the defined benefit plan
when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains or losses for the
plan at the end of the previous period exceeded 10% of the higher
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets at that date. Upon the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011), all
actuarial gains and losses are recognized in OCl immediately. As a
result, all deferred actuarial gains and losses as at 1 April 2012 and
31 March 2013 were recognized in OCI. In addition, the interest cost
and expected return on plan assets recorded in 2013 have been
replaced by a net interest amount.

Furthermore, upon the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011), all past service
costs are recognized at the earlier of when an amendment/curtailment
occurs and when the related restructuring or termination costs are
recognized. As a result, unvested past service costs can no longer be
deferred and recognized over the future vesting period. The balance of
unrecognized service costs as at 1 April 2012 was charged to retained
profits as at 1 April 2012 and the amortization of past service costs for
the year ended 31 March 2013 has been adjusted. HKAS 19 (2011)
also requires more extensive disclosures which are included in note 28
to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Other than the changes to the accounting for defined benefit plans,
HKAS 19 (2011) also changes the timing of recognition for termination
benefits and the classification of short term employee benefits. The
revised standard requires termination benefits outside of a wider
restructuring to be recognized only when the offer becomes legally
binding and cannot be withdrawn. Under the revised standard, the
distinction between short term and other long term employee benefits
is now based on the expected timing of settlement rather than
employee entitlement.

The effects of the changes to the accounting for the Group’s defined
benefit plans are summarized below:

Impact on the consolidated income statement:

BE-ZT—NF HE_ZT—=F
ZA=+—-BLEEE =A=1+—HILFE

For the year ended For the year ended

CEETFor) (HK$'000) 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
SHE R AR A Decrease in cost of sales 328 -
FE R 0 Increase in gross profit 328 -

BRI At ) e R 2
intlllE SN N NN
TR A AR

Increase in profit before tax and
profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company 328 -

RAGERFEEA Increase in earnings per share
R ERAET attributable to equity holders
2 of the Company
EARCGEM) Basic (HK cent) 0.05 -
By OBl Diluted (HK cent) 0.05 -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

The effects of the changes to the accounting for the Group’s defined

benefit plans are summarized below: (continued)

Hira PE ek 2 FE Impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:
BZE-—Z—MNF HE-_ZT—=F
=A=1+—HLEE =ZA=+—HIFE
For the year ended For the year ended
CEETT) (HK$°000) 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
REEHFIE N Increase in profit for the year 328 -
TFHEEANETZBE Increase in actuarial gains/(losses)
wm A, (E518) 5N on defined benefit obligations 1,180 (624)
AERFHMEEYE Increase/(decrease) in other
A0,/ G ) comprehensive income for the year 1,180 (624)
REFB2AEARE Increase/(decrease) in total
#hn,Crd) comprehensive income for the year
1 A /NG] — attributable to equity holders
BE=FEEA of the Company 1,508 (624)

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

benefit plans are summarized below: (continued)

B The effects of the changes to the accounting for the Group's defined

B e BmRERZ Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position:
R-ZB—ME RZIT—=F RIZ—F
=A=+—H =H=+—H MA—H

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April

CEETFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013 2012

HAabEERA R Decrease in other payables and

EstaERRE accruals and total current

BE&FHRD liabilities 16,307 18,423 20,565

EREEAETR Increase in defined benefit

e TEIN=E = obligations and total

BEHE AN non-current liabilities (23,034) (26,658) (28,176)

BEFENMES Decrease in net assets and

BEDR total equity

— BN ARR] — impact on equity attributable

EmFEEA to equity holders of

S the Company (6,727) (8,235) (7,611)

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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—E-FE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014

23 WM ERERNEEBUNBRE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

28 REPORTING STANDARDS
REBVENZEVHBRRAEAUT The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
BEMBEARERZ T REERTE S that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
ISR 2R o statements.
BB IR R HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments *
E95 SHTA
B ERE B E R EE HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments to
ZRIFE I HEERIE 9 and HKAS 39 HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 394
BERERE BB R ER Amendments
EBE 75 % FE7HREH
BB BSHERIFE 395

%395k (&7]) EaT

BERBRE BRI BREES HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
ERE 1055 105 - HEUH and HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment
EBERE HAERIZE 1255 Amendments Entities !

ERE 125 % REAGEER
BAgER 82757 (2011) 5T
2797 (2011) - REFE!
(1&3])
BAUBRELER
F115% (187]) BRI ELER HKFRS 11 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 11 - Accounting
F115E5] for Acquisition of Interests in Joint
—EL EEE L Operations 3
B 2 BEES

F 145 EERERE HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

AR

F16% K& BERGITERF 165 HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
3857 (187]) KBS ER Amendments — Clarification of Acceptable Methods

E 38K IER] of Depreciation and Amortization 3
—EREEZ
A[EZ 28083

195 (127]) ERERERFE 19% HKAS 19 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
ERIESEF— Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
EREEHEE - Employee Contributions 2
ESH5°
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

23EHMAEBERERNEBUBERE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

A (&) REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

BB ERER

£ 325 (1BFT) BESEERFE 325 HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
BRI AN Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
2 -2 HEE Financial Assets and Financial
Rz HAEH Liabilities !
g

£ 365 (185]) BAGTERIE36HR HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of
BRI EEBE — Assets — Recoverable Amount
HeHEEZ T Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets !
Wlel £ 5% E !

283955 (1&57) BEREEFERIE 395 HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial

Bi 8 TA : Instruments: Recognition and
R E—ITHE Measurement — Novation of Derivatives
TREERHM and Continuation of Hedge Accounting !
B AR
&% (ERS% GLGAER HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies !
WEREZE
a)— 28
F215:
—E-ZFFS ETHR-_ZE—WF Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
—EF——F — R &% 2010-2012 Cycle issued in January 2014 2
B FE B s A
2 CHE
—E——FF ETHN-—Z—NE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
—E—=F —RAEfmzEE 2011-2013 Cycle issued in January 2014 2
B FE Bi T2
2t f&a] 2

L RCE-mE— A B AER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

FREHIBER

2 RZEBE-—NFEHA—H(AEREBZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
FEERE AR

3 RIZE—RF-A—AUAEREZ 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
FREHIBER

¢ OREFREIER A EERATHERA

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for

adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2014

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The

Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealized losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held

equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognized in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergy of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of
the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity

is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong —  Over the lease terms

Buildings outside Hong Kong  — 15 to 60 years

Plant, machinery, furniture - 2to1lbyears

and other equipment
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



fiA

=
=
—=

R AL

mE=A=+—H

FEREHBERBE @)

ERMEERE

AEBNBEREHRFIEEEFER
BRER R AR —HeREELTR
1B o R VREREEREEN—FRk
LREMHZASZETRMEENERT
ARRBEREBEXTE A BB ERER
SfhEt o RIFERIE < BIETRAE
B BHEBA LEREALER
o BAOFCKRBEEENSHAS Y
R WEGAREWESETHMUKE
M A RA A BRBURBERMERTRIGR
EREBHIRAAEZRMD - FIINRRE
B &85k 3R BLE KOMRRE 2 BAOR ©

ABHE KA B T HEE

SURE N AGHBNEMEEMS @ A
SEE L SRER EERERBEE AR
CREEIRASEERENTBEKR
NERMEE  FMERETFERE © WA

ERERBEHEEFEZEBEE
(ﬂ REBENES) WETERETRTF
£ AZREESR A —MAEARUE
ERBSEZ CMEENR - WHRARG
ZAEEMEETTFERE o &ERIFF
ﬁﬁﬁZﬁF*Eﬁ@%%®%%ﬂﬁ
HERRAANR  MTEMAKRARER
(P

ERREEREERSBNE - TRE
EZREEERGET AR ZASRER
BE2EZR(TERERAEEZAREE
1BK) - ﬁﬁ*Xﬁ%MEZﬁﬁué
BB E Z VIR ERR A R (AN H)46 HERRA
AAEAANERNR) R -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through”
arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
included in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside the income statement is recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered:

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
rate method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated

at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal government.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefit pension
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions
to the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and
termination benefit entitlements. The fund is administered by
the Employees’ Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”)
and is deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost
of providing pension benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

Remeasurements arising from the OIld Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest),
are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the income
statement in subsequent periods.
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3. XEEHHEBER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

EEEF (&) Employee benefits (continued)

(a) RikzztE (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost

of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements

e Net interest expense or income

In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on
1 July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations,
the employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or to
stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation to the government designated account since the
election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
years prior to 1 July 2005.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those

involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described as below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2014 was HK$94,931,000 (2013: HK$94,931,000). More
details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.

Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

103
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables is
required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status and
the likelihood of collection. Following the identification of objective
evidence for potential impairment of debts, the responsible personnel
will discuss with the relevant customers and report to management on
the recoverability. Individual impairment allowance is only made for
those impaired receivables that are unlikely to be collected.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of plastic
injection moulding machines and related products. For management
purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the
geographical location of customers and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(i) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax assets
and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits. Segment
liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets, liabilities
and expenditure information for the Group's operating segments for the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

w} e
REIHMEFH
7o EB Uk =
Segment revenue PEBEE
from external customers Segment results
AEEH Group
CEMTFor) (HK$’000) 2014 2013 2014 2013
R B K B K S Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,189,675 1,168,288 80,529 87,346
= Taiwan 145,451 114,237 16,564 12,513
HiBINER Other overseas countries 511,049 511,027 25,584 43,927
1,846,175 1,793,552 122,677 143,786

mE N IEER Reconciliation of results of

BRFR A A operating segments to

FEWT profit before tax is as follows:
KRN IR Operating segment results 122,677 143,786
REDUWA R U= Unallocated income and gains 17,529 12,503
ERRES TN Corporate and unallocated expenses (35,444) (33,275)
BhE B AN Finance costs (5,469) (5,610)
FE(RHEE N A Share of profits less losses

via AR ET 18 of associates 6,638 3,731
B R AT & Profit before tax 105,931 121,135

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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mE=A=+—H 31 March 2014
ReEsWER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEEE PEEE
Segment assets Segment liabilities
2014 2013 2014 2013
TEE Group (#eE5)
CEETFor) (HK$°000) (Restated)
e PN Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,514,389 2,527,564 422,000 430,417
= Taiwan 145,707 111,125 51,596 42,067
HAbFINE R Other overseas countries 289,325 274,812 181,287 188,183
2,949,421 2,913,501 654,883 660,667
REENRIZKE Investments in associates 32,706 28,657 - -
KD EE Unallocated assets 914,360 862,704 - -
FeEoaE Unallocated liabilities - - 326,590 271,616
3,896,487 3,804,862 981,473 932,283
A HER
Other segment information
BRRERNR/
EbkRe (B MHBEES
ER#H Zik /(KA Impairment losses EREx
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(reversed) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement expenditure
158 Group

(EBFT) (HK8'000) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
PEABERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 70477 65,304 (6,747) (4574)  (15,097)  (18447) 120614 112709
B Taiwan 1312 976 4 1 (121) (62) 37 30
EgoER Other overseas countries 2412 2,002 (11) 72 153 (3150 1,03 497
74,201 68,282 (6,754) (4645) (14,295  (21666) 121,966 113508

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

IRBEE
Non-current assets

rEH Group
(B FT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
HRBKRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,064,295 999,645
ae Taiwan 97,846 102,666
HgINER Other overseas countries 394 -

1,162,535 1,102,311
bz IEREN B EE R VIR E EFTEHD The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
EHBREE AT 2RE @ BEFRIBEE the assets and excludes investments in associates, deferred tax assets

ENTRIAH -

6. Wi

and financial instrument.

6. REVENUE

Wt (TRRARE 2 & RB)IEFRZHE
ERZEE  OMEREREZIMN M
TEREEQREZIRS °

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
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31 March 2014

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AEEZBBAEF S GEA)T

Notes to Financial Statements

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

HIIR -
2014 2013
(gE=5)
(BEMFr) (HK$'000) B15# Notes (Restated)
ERTFEERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,429,321 1,371,194
e Depreciation 15 71,386 66,463
TEf A E R Amortization of prepaid land
ZEEE lease payments 16 2,815 1,819
LEME  BME& Loss on disposal of items of
Rz EsE property, plant and equipment* 64 152
B AR Gain on deregistration of
iy a subsidiary* (2,918) -
Y% - BB KRB Write-off of items of property,
- plant and equipment* 15 221 1,110
LT REFLLEL  Minimum lease payments under
MET 2 &EHE operating leases of leasehold
it land and buildings 7,097 5,597
M RFEER Research and development costs*** 48,618 37,929
2 Glll e Auditors’ remuneration 2,029 1,920
BIRAZH(ES Employee benefit expenses (excluding
B AN—F7729) © directors’ emoluments — note 9):
TE&RE M Wages and salaries 253,899 220,088
RIS FT B Pension scheme contributions
(ERHETE) (defined contribution scheme) 20,935 18,425
RIREFTBIR A Pension scheme costs
(ERERMETE) (defined benefit scheme) 28 1,153 1,468
JEWE 5 R EWEEF  Impairment of trade and bills
EFRE receivables, net*** 21 355 382
FERERRD Write-back of impairment
HEE of inventories, net** (14,650) (22,048)
DE 5 72 B 5RE * Foreign exchange differences, net*** (30,718) (16,583)
FBUTA * Interest income* (14,611) (12,503)
SRR BE LY Write-back of aged liabilities* (4,121) (5,907)

¥ ZERACDEENGAMERZ (B
U AR MR A o

> ZBEEERERGAMERZ [HE

PR A e

o ZEEACDBRRERGFARERZ K

QR STHFR] A -

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR

*  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face

of the consolidated income statement.

**  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

income statement.

*** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the

face of the consolidated income statement.
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—ET-WFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014
8. BMEMAK 8. FINANCE COSTS
NEE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
REFAZEEEZ Interest on bank loans
IRITEFF B wholly repayable within five years 5,469 5,610
9. EEME 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
KBEBHEXT AR AR ([HZ Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Rules
BT ) &% EMAR B R BB R REHEI (5 Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
622EZ )MiR 11 F 7815 EFRNESHE Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to
WEMT : the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) are as follows:
AEH Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
W Fees:
HITES Executive directors - -
B IEMITES Independent non-executive directors 880 880
HEme Other emoluments:
B RRN R EYWE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,081 11,106
FIRERTEAT Performance related bonuses 891 891
RIKEFT BN Pension scheme contributions 60 60
12,912 12,937
BTFE  ETESRRERRBTASE In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
B MERE AR BB S TR of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of the
A HE - FF AR E R DI B 7 e 2k 2 B Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
3l e ZEBRENATFTEIZEBH statements. The fair value of such options, which had been recognized
ElEERPER  ERATERIRH B in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
Ho the date of grant.

BREEARAT 2014 3§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014 1 09
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

Eoy N year were as follows:

REE Group

(BEFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013

PR B2 ¢ S A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 215 215

Anish LALVANI %4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 230 230

PR Bt Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 215 215

MFERE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 220 220
880 880

FR - WEEMBE S TIEILIE

HTER(CT—=F:8)-

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR

executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



R E e

—EF-mE=A=+-8

9. EEME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) BITESE (b) Executive directors
2014
FE
B
ENFIE ES ) EikE
Salaries, A FHEMER
allowances Performance Pension em@st
#£ and benefits related scheme Total
(EEFr) (HK$°000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEML Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,055 337 - 4,392
BBt Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 206 15 2,702
BEREE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1877 126 15 2,018
BRREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,534 128 15 1,677
REELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 94 15 1,243
- 11,081 891 60 12,032
2013
-
B
ENFIE ES) EkE
Salaries, A FHEIfR
allowances Performance Pension & dst
#£ and benefits related scheme Total
CE¥TT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEML Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,089 337 - 4,426
BEBLT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 206 15 2,702
BEREE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,869 126 15 2,010
BRRLE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,533 128 15 1,676
REELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 94 15 1,243
- 11,106 891 60 12,057

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the following
bands:

EEAY
Number of directors
CER) (HK$) 2014 2013
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 1 1
5 5

ER—_TTN\FE  2RSHER
TE  SWTEFARREERER
¥ BEBLNEBERLIRER
F30% - BERELE - ERRE
HRRIEE A REANFEN20% -
2HH-_FTEN\F+-_A—-BEL
M BEAEEEBHENNTE
RABENERSLE - AREIR
REBEREFERSRUSW hER -
MAKE 2 EBINEBRIZE © FIE
MITEER B R ERIREAH R
EHR10% W —T—FTF=A
—HBRER - ERTEFAREE
- STESZEAFHMERES
BRARG s 2 REKF

FA - AEEYEETERHE A
SV T AR S B SAE R IAR
SR $REN - SBERAAR(E -

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR

Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late
2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a
temporary reduction of 30% of basic remuneration in the cases of
Dr. Chen CHIANG and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic
remuneration in the cases of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen
Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG, all with effect from
1 December 2008 until the business of the Group recovers and
when the executive directors consider appropriate. In view of the
fact that the global economy started and continued to recover from
the financial tsunami and the business operation of the Group had
become stable, all the executive directors had agreed to change
the rate of temporary reduction of their basic remuneration to
10% with effect from 1 March 2010. The basic remuneration of
the executive directors would be resumed to the original levels as
contained in their service agreements when the executive directors
consider appropriate.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the

directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2013:
five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

rEE Group
(EBEEFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
BNER - Current:
REF T Charge for the year
&% Hong Kong 3 3
E fibih[m Elsewhere 13,179 20,698
BAFELIREE Over provision in prior years (100) (11,732)
TEIE —f 7t 29 Deferred — note 29 11,252 7,356
AEEHIBEL H Tax charge for the year 24,334 16,325

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax

at the statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/

B (MEBHI2%E25%) 2 HAELH
B ER B RTE 2 AT H 2 s

to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled

T
EE Group
CEETFT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
ERA% A& A Profit before tax 105,931 121,135
AT EFEZHIA Tax at the statutory tax rates 29,429 31,712
fERI& 10 et 77 e hs Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

2R ER, BE R & specific provinces and local authorities (9,094) (9,993)
B &N R G A B 1B Profits and losses attributable to associates (1,659) (933)
AR 2 S Expenses not deductible for tax 6,645 9,895
BAGMTRIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (11,910) (8,577)
RERZAFEHIBEE Tax losses for the year not recognized 8,786 2,942
FRARERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

IEEE prior years utilized (1,282) (581)
BTN IE 2 AR Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years (100) (11,732)
AEBZHB AR DA Effect of withholding tax on distributable

FHEENSR o2 profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 3,519 3,592
EASEERBEFAE . Tax charge at the Group’s

RIS effective tax rate 24,334 16,325

114 mueEmsRAE 2014 F£35
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37,851,000 7T) (M45E 32) °

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of HK$38,180,000
(2013: HK$37,851,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32).

R E 13. DIVIDENDS
(CBEFT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
FARAERE Dividends paid during the year:
HE2—_Z—=F=A=+—HI Finalin respect of the financial year
FFE 2 KA — B E AR ended 31 March 2013 — HK$0.06
BT (BE_T——F (year ended 31 March 2012:
—A=+—HLFE: HK$0.08) per ordinary share
7E#0.087T) 37,832 50,341
F A — TR mAR S 0.03 7T Interim — HK$0.03 (2013: HK$0.025)
ZE—=%F : B%0.0257T) per ordinary share 18,916 15,731
56,748 66,072
EEARARE Proposed final dividend:
N — BRI BB 0.04 7T Final — HK$0.04 (2013: HK$0.06)
(ZZE—=% : A% 0.067T) per ordinary share 25,221 37,832

AEFREZR I RPREBEARRFRR
ERSRITZRREFAGHARTT A
1EE o LRI AR BRI K

BB o

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

payable.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend
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31 March 2014

14, X AR ERFEABRLRERER 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

BREAZNTIRIEF RN REER
B AJE(h 7R 5= B ) 78 ¥ 81,368,000
(=T — =4 : % #103,933,000
TI)RFRAEETEBR 2 MET
¥ $1630,531,600%( = & — = F -
629,358,992 %) s E Fr15 -

MR A EERNF AL EETEREES
SRR SRFEAREREIINE
BEABNETRE - #HE_T—=F
ZA=1T—BFERN  SEEEEN])
RIBEFARRERFE ARGAEE
i )7 #5 103,933,000 7T K2 i i A 2 hn
¥ 15 80629,526,796 % (BNEt B B AR
ERBAMAMBEFEHETERRZ
HNHEF 15981 629,358,992 ik I iR 5% £ F
HARTEZBRES 2B AFREM
BITERAMET 2 L BRNEFHH
167,804 %) st & 15 -

116 muEmaRAF 2014 F35

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$81,368,000 (2013: HK$103,933,000) and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600 (2013:
629,358,992) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
presented for the year as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the year. During the year ended 31 March
2013, the calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
last year of HK$103,933,000 and on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 629,526,796, being the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 629,358,992 in issue during the last year as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 167,804 assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options
outstanding during the last year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2014

KAERLH
REF R K& -
HEET Hes - B
Freehold REMERE
land and Plant,
buildings, HRIR machinety,
biN-E Group and leasehold Construction  furniture and @t
(EEFr) (HK$'000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
RZE—=FMA—A At 1 April 2013
5% Cost 793,828 103,516 1,000,793 1,898,137
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
KRE and impairment (219,491) - (718,113) (937,604)
REFE Net carrying amount 574,337 103,516 282 630 960,533
R-E—=FmA—§H" At 1 April 2013, net of
EHGRRETE accumulated depreciation
PAE and impairment 574,337 103,516 282,680 960,533
NE Additions 31 89,951 25,931 115913
HeE Disposals - (458) (458)
FE8H Write-offs - (14) (207) (221)
s Transfers - (1,108) 1,108 -
AEENERE Depreciation provided during the year (24,113) - (47,273) (71,386)
e Exchange realignment 6,518 1,928 5,192 13,638
RZZF—ME=F=+—H " At31 March 2014, net of
EMRRTE accumulated depreciation
RRiE and impairment 556,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019
RIZ-MF=A=+—H At31March 2014
B% Cost 802,871 194,273 1,036,077 2,033,221
ZEnE Accumulated depreciation
PAE! and impairment (246,098) - (769,104) (1,015,202)
REFE Net carrying amount 5b6,773 194,273 266,973 1,018,019

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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—ZT-mFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014
15. 9% - MERZE(Z) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
—E—=%#=ZA=+—H 31 March 2013
KAERL
REF R RE
HeEeF e EH
Freehold REMSRE
land and Plant,
buildings, EEIR machinery,
KEE Group and leasehold  Construction  furniture and @st
(EETFT) (HK$000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
R-E——#mA—A At 1 April 2012
AR Cost 779,382 31,705 994,807 1,805,894
Z5E Accumulated depreciation
KA and impairment (195,981) - (695,540) (891,521)
REFE Net carrying amount 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373
R-E——&EmA—F At 1 April 2012, net of
EMRERHTE accumulated depreciation
KA and impairment 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373
RE Additions 2,055 Q417 19,036 113,508
HeE Disposals - - (912) (912)
s Write-offs (521) - (589) (1,110
L3 Transfers 11,878 (20,733) 8,855 -
AEENERE Depreciation provided during the year (23,244) - (43,219) (66,463)
R Exchange realignment 768 127 242 1,137
RZZ—=F=FA=1+—H " At31 March 2013, net of
EMGRRTE accumulated depreciation
RAE and impairment 574,337 103,516 282,680 960,533
WZE—=F=H=1+—H At31 March 2013
KA Cost 793,828 103,516 1,000,793 1,898,137
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation
P UAE! and impairment (219,491) - (718,113) (937,604)
REFE Net carrying amount 574,337 103,516 282,680 960,533
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

included above are analyzed as follows:

The Group’s freehold land and buildings, and leasehold buildings

rEE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
FiiE B MRLEF Leasehold buildings held under:
EBRE 2 HERL) Medium term leases in Hong Kong 10,739 11,195
B LAIMb R 2 1 BiE2 49 Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 455,715 469,272
466,454 480,467
TEBEBAIMEE 2 Freehold land and buildings
KAERE L R IETF held outside Hong Kong 90,319 93,870
556,773 574,337

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
(HK$'000)

B R EEE
Furniture and
other equipment

—E-MFE=A=+—H

R-E—=FMA—H -

31 March 2014

At 1 April 2013,

EHREFHTE net of accumulated depreciation 344
NEFITERE Depreciation provided during the year (98)
MZE—MNE=A=+—H " At31 March 2014,

Bk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 246
RZZE—MFE=A=+—H  At31 March 2014

DEN Cost 2,460

ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (2,214)
REFE Net carrying amount 246
—E—=%=A=+—AH 31 March 2013
N-ZZE——FmA—H - At 1 April 2012,

Bk EFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 443
KEZIFERE Depreciation provided during the year (99)
RZE—=F=A=+—H " At31 March 2013,

Bk EFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 344
MRZE—=F=A=+—H  At31 March 2013

[B%N Cost 2,460

23T E Accumulated depreciation (2,116)
R A Net carrying amount 344

120 musEmaRAE 2014 F£35
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

rEE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
REYRRAEE Carrying amount at beginning of year 44,823 46,530
0 Additions 6,053 -
PNy Amortized during the year (2,815) (1,819)
bE 5 Exchange realignment 563 112
R=A=+—HBMNEAE Carrying amount at 31 March 48,624 44 823
mBE D BIETE Current portion included in

A& BRRIER deposits, prepayments and

E R (A5 22) other receivables (note 22) (1,940) (1,829)
IERENE D Non-current portion 46,684 42,994

AEEE DRI AN L HEER

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed

DI - as follows:
AEH Group
CEETT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
FriF B HTaT £ A8 Prepaid land lease payments held under:
EEEZ P EIRY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 13,565 13,961
TEEBLASMEE Medium term leases outside
Z P HARR A Hong Kong 35,059 30,862
48,624 44 823
e 17. GOODWILL
AEHE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
B Goodwill 94,931 94 931

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

AERERR

BEBAHELEZHECHRTETH
BRARETHENDR - ZFWBLRFZ
ARESBEIRIEEREEZTEE
E o ATEMANRESRETRARFH
RIEERER - WEREBEAENER
BREERERE RITRE - PHIA
BHHIERR T EFANBEFENE
B MERNEH - R REFRRMA
IR EFE R (ZT—=F :9%)
(A1) - ARBRAAREM B AR 2/ E A
% > AFEHR AR RIRIERE3I%HE

st

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation include the expected growth rate and discount rate.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting current and prior years
performance and development expectations. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 6% (2013: 9%) which is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of

"o 3%.
18. R B ARIZIRE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AAHE Company
CE#EFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
JE MR - FRAAR(E Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370
FEURFT B R RIBR FF 5 Due from subsidiaries, net 1,089,457 1,078,484
FERTB B A RIERR Due to subsidiaries (521,901) (516,470)
IERENE D Non-current portion 739,926 734,384
— R B R RIBR X Due from a subsidiary included in

BREERESEEN current assets 216,429 127,878

956,355 862,262

BP BN ) 2 AR ERRR A - B
TR R R ERER TOIRIRIT IS A
TUEH) S, o BB E A B Z R
TIRERNEARBIEEERENSE
Ko ARBREENRERR T —EAR
BRXNZEELR B RRMELRF
BRFRE1 216,429,000 T(ZF— =4 :
B ¥ 127,878,0007T) 4+ 5% — & B
BARIRRSRELER -

122 musEmaRAE 2014 F£35

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured. The balances with
certain subsidiaries bear interest at prevailing market rates. As
the balances with subsidiaries arose from advances to/from the
subsidiaries for the purpose of operational financing, the Company
does not intend to demand settlement of the amounts involved within
12 months from the end of the reporting period, except for an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$216,429,000 (2013: HK$127,878,000),
which is repayable on demand.
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R-ZE—ME=ZA=+—8  stEWk
ATHBRRRIGHIRRERELE
#90,400,000L (=T — =4 : B
84,400,0007T) °

FA - REKETHEB QR RRER
1B 78 156,000,000 ( = F — =4 -
7% 10,500,0007T) - HAAREESE
#203,087,0007c (=T — =4 : B¥
196,748,0007T) » BIEREE Z EZ
EMBARICEESRE -

TEMNBRARZHBEHIINEIOE
1638 A -

19. REFE R T 2 IRE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, there was an impairment of HK$90,400,000
(2013: HK$84,400,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.

During the vyear, impairment losses of HK$6,000,000 (2013:
HK$10,500,000) were recognized for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying amount of HK$203,087,000
(2013: HK$196,748,000). The impairment provision had taken into
account the net asset values of the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 160 to
163.

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

REE Group
CE#EFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 32,706 28,657

ERBE R R RRBEAEZHEA -
B RE RN =TRAZT -
Bt RZE—WMF=-A=1+—0 &
{THE & N BIBR OB ¥ 7,898,0007T (=&
— =4 : &¥5359,0007C) B i AJE
NEZREEERZRA - REIEHREM T
2587 o

IBEARREZBE AR RNTEAR

SANE (R B ) Gl e rp B KP4 &
ZEEA -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days. Accordingly, as
at 31 March 2014, the amounts due to associates of HK$7,898,000
(2013: HK$5,359,000) are included in the trade and bills payables, as
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and operating in Mainland
China.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

AEBENL

ERTRAEE EZEI

BlRER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
£ issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
BRILTH = MR E AR A A 1,520,000 % ¢ 25 FIE R SHE
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. US$1,520,000 REBBHEER
Manufacture and sale
of iron casting products
FILT R B R B E G R AR 800,000 7T 25 )
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant

Company, Limited ©
Bigt - Notes:

(1) ERARFERBBL KSR BIEAT (1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or

LK E RN ET T BRAR AR EAh AR

BRREZ

(2) FARRK=A=+—R%
Hl - A EERARZH

(3) HEX AR BBEMHBR] -

FA - AEEE B E R RER S

H#FER
EHHE -

with their holding company’s reporting date.

another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

(2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform

(3) The English company name is translated for identification purpose

only.

The Group received dividend income amounting to HK$3,148,000

ABH3,1480007T(—F—=%F : &) - (2013: Nil) from an associate during the year.
TRITRASEE R IEERAIEEE N The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
AW E RN AAEE the Group’s associates that are not individually material:
CEETIT) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
lapi b /NCIEES R D Share of the associates’ profit for the year 6,638 3,731
HEE RN FEME2E RS Share of the associates’ other comprehensive income 559 125
HEE QB EE K Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income 7,197 3,856
AEEREENTIRE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

BREEERE investments in the associates 32,706 28,657

124 mueEmsRAE 2014 F£35
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31 March 2014

20. 78 20.INVENTORIES
NEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
G Raw materials 239,985 277,518
EE S Work in progress 258,657 275,420
SURY dh Finished goods 314,465 289,389
813,107 842,327
21. EREZ REEBIR 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
AEH Group
CEEFT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
JEUNE 5 R EHEIRN Trade and bills receivables 901,618 903,686
RE Impairment (70,216) (70,125)
831,402 833,561

BEFZ2BRGR—RBRERS ~ iRTT
SBRLERNE - AREREERNEP
ZEAFRENREERMEER  FOE
EHRNTR RETERERSNE
R &P - BIEREEEN - K&
1B R B BB AR IR 22 15 L fR R e B KB
R BREERBREERE -

AR DB AR ENEKE S R
SERKAREDBEP AR » 802
BEANETEERR - ARELEH
A ERF A AR AR E A INRER
2 o RERWE S REEERFIL A
B AS, o

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills or
on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the Group,
subject to their respective business strength and creditability. The
average credit period is 90 days and extension of the credit period is
made for customers with good trading and repayment records. The
Group adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables
that serve to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. The
trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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—ZT-mFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014
21. EWE S REHRR(Z) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

EBWE S EEBRREFREREE S The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables
T are as follows:
NEE Group
CEETFT) (HK$’000) 2014 2013
REH At beginning of year 70,125 73,931
ERERNRARE Impairment losses charged to

B8 FRE (15 7) the income statement, net (note 7) 355 382
[ER RN E e Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,666) (5,476)
P 52 Exchange realignment 1,402 1,288
R=ZBA=1+—H At 31 March 70,216 70,125
E Lt EWE 5 N ERIRFUS B BET Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
BIEHEEERRERKE 5 RFEE receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
B 62,179,000 T (ZFE—=4F : B of HK$62,179,000 (2013: HK$63,540,000) with a gross carrying
63,540,0007T) * EREFER 2 RHEE amount before provision of HK$70,097,000 (2013: HK$84,239,000).
BEAEEET70,097,000 L (ZF—=F : /& The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to
#84,239,0007T) ° B EIE R (E B customers that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal
ZEWE 5 RERRFSEF BEAE payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be
2R KR FERRR ATUR Bl ER o EUR R TR 2 recovered.
KPP e
WR AR ERENERE S NEEER The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based on the
B MR EEFE ZRROTOT payment due date, that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:
REE Group
(E#EFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
REVER (W R mEAZRE) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 605,426 639,047
‘AL NR Less than 90 days past due 97,036 100,882
BEHNLT—ZEZ—BNTX 91 to 180 days past due 55,685 39,371
BHIBA—AN\T+X Over 180 days past due 73,255 54,261

831,402 833,561
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEEH RATF
Group Company
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013 2014 2013
e RIENFHKIE Deposits and prepayments 35,714 31,849 417 417
A A& Prepaid land lease payments,
TENER D (BTt 16) current portion (note 16) 1,940 1,829 - -
E U BR R Other receivables 21,985 21,344 306 363
59,639 55,022 723 780

ZEEEMEANNMNE - GHRTHE
ROE B MOT H B A SRAC 8% 2 FRUR

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in these balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

23.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

NEH Group

(BB For) (HK$’000) 2014 2013

HIRRITIER - FERENEES  Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion 3,265 -

H|HRITIFR - REE D Pledged bank deposits, current portion 79,473 80,280
82,738 80,280

HEERREATHEBRRE 2 EAFE
T1E50 - HAE# 40,853,000 L (=F
— =4 : #1541, 343,000 7T) FAEER
MBI RES THBERERTE LS
—ERE  B¥36,260,000 T(=F
— =4 : 8% 32,839,000 7T) A {EER
BHATHERNRITRALER - %%
EZELARMNEBEDRERERA - UK
FE#5,625000C (=T —=F : B
6,098,0007T ) A{ERR T T HE#
M2 RERARMERS  URERE

b
i

L ARIRIT I B O S T R R 04248
2 HEBRT -

128 musEmaRAF 2014 F£85

Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
including HK$40,853,000 (2013: HK$41,343,000) for securing
certain loans granted by certain financial institutions in Mainland China
to independent third parties, HK$36,260,000 (2013: HK$32,839,000)
for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included in the
trade and bills payables, to suppliers, and HK$5,625,000 (2013:
HK$6,098,000) to guarantee for payments of construction costs of
industrial buildings and rental of premises, and tendering of contracts.

The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

24.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

AEE ANF]
Group Company
CEB#EFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Be MIRTTHETE Cash and bank balances 515,285 510,496 8,911 24,503
N ETS iR Bank deposits with
JREfm B original maturity of
TR=MEA less than three months
2 TEHTFRK when acquired 279,008 241,690 - 45,087
HBek Cash and
REeZEEY cash equivalents 794,293 752,186 8,911 69,590
PATF SR RE B Bank deposits with
JRERW A original maturity of
BE=1EA more than three months
ZEHATERR when acquired 49,586 33,940 - -
@il e RIRITETT Total cash and bank balances 843,879 786,126 8,911 69,590
BieE - SBRITFEFRARITEETFRZEF Note: The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

KRN B - RFAEBEREH
B MEZA—REAREAT
ENERFER - LAEBEFRR
KR A MRITREFREEZ
ETEDLBE 2N RERRA
B RITHEF RN L ST IR
Wiz BIEBRIT

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates or rates correlated to a certain percentage of
local interbank deposit rate. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

25.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

TEE Group

(BEBFoT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013

R EEf Current 321,865 323,201

—z=htK 1 to 90 days 66,565 72,222

N+—XRKE—BN+X 91 to 180 days 1,823 4,632

BdE—antx Over 180 days 12,407 11,308
402,660 411,363

FEINE 5 NSRRI M AR - FEA
B LEBERRE D BREENBE QT
FIEEHT7 898,000 (ZF—=5F : B
#5,359,0007T) * A HIERF/=1X
AEAN AL S/ L NI e
ERPHRE GFARLT -

26. At R R FERT B8

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$7,898,000 (2013:
HK$5,359,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days,
which represent similar credit terms to those offered by the associates
to their major customers.

26.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

KEH RAF
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
(se&E5)
(EEFT) (HK$'000) (Restated)
BUEGET & Deposits received 60,288 62,363 59 57
JEErEER Accruals and
HivafE other liabilities 168,901 160,283 4,858 6,285
229,189 222 646 4,917 6,342

RARMENERRETRENSHE
BEITHFE
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The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
non-interest-bearing.
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—ET-WFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2014
27. 5T EBRITER 27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
ERFIE
Effective
rEE Group interest rate Z| 1
(BEEFT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2014 2013
RITEREED Bank loans repayable 16 2014
—ER - EEH within one year, unsecured (2013:1.8)  (2013: 2013) 290,203 231,625
BRI
Effective
b NN Company interest rate EH
(GEETFT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2014 2013
RITEREED Bank loans repayable 1.5 2014
—FR - EE within one year, unsecured (2013: 1.7)  (2013: 2013) 210,000 150,000

A E AR T FIERRIT AT
BFI%E S -

28. EHBAEME 28.

AEBHEREZMBARRIERTS
RHEN-_ZFZTRAFLA-BSETEKRE
ROIERACESEZMBRAREMAZ
BAENES - REEFE - REAR
BFEERRAFEMHRZARKEN R
AR DR FHETE - &% /45
Bh o EEDLSE 65 R RIKFERF - &2
Rt B AKR /N ME A BP9 AFrat
=i

EfSIERAREE ARZENERES
K RN EEEHEREEEE I
NEEgz2EFA—REBAERE
EREEAZTREE - ZEEAFEEA
FA  EAKENEEEBEOM -Z8
SR EMEZA BN E R o

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

The Group’s and the Company’s unsecured bank loans are at floating
rates.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme, covering
substantially all of its employees who were recruited by the Taiwanese
subsidiaries before the implementation of the Labour Act on 1 July
2005. Under the Old Scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits annually based on an accumulated base point, which is
determined by their years of service, with a maximum of 45 points
multiplied by the average month salary for the final six months of
employment on attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly contributions
to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by the Committee
and is deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The assets
held by the trustee are separate from those of the Group. The Committee
are responsible for the determination of the investment strategy
of the scheme.
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31 March 2014

28. EHEBRAIEME(E) 28. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

ZETEIZ A KRR - RREXBZANE
wEEBRE - RATmEERR X EERE
VR o

ROHIZFIEEEREREMNEERE
REME THEEBRESERAZA
é(T%FMEﬁEE’EQFEEEEFEJfoﬁﬁﬂ&
RN -_ZE—NEFE=H —+*E
TyLATERT BB BB R EER

RmERRZ EBZRERRLT ¢

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31 March
2014 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting Inc., a qualified
actuarial recognized by the Actuarial Institute in Taiwan, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2014 2013
PR Discount rate 2% 1.75%
TEHE SRR Expected rate of salary increases 1% 1%

FHEEBRTNAEEENMERL
#16,966,000C( Z & —=F : B
16,999,000t ) - B EEEEMNHKE
BEERTEEMEE TFHENBHME
A2%(ZF—=%F : 39%) - MR AEE
23,034,000 7T I 78 8 7 7 &4 AR 75 HA 18
FHR -

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was
HK$16,966,000 (2013: HK$16,999,000) and that the actuarial value
of these assets represented 42% (2013: 39%) of the benefits that had
accrued to qualifying employees. The deficiency of HK$23,034,000 is
expected to be cleared over the remaining service period of 18 years.

TREZE—NF=A=+—H8FFFEH A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31
K ERBHRAEEGFRMEDHT March 2014 is shown below:

EHEEANEL EERHESL

FEEM/(RY) FEEM/ (D)

FLERIE Increase/ tERD Increase/

Increase  (decrease) of net Decrease (decrease) of net

inrate  defined benefit inrate  defined benefit

(BEFT) (HK$000) % obligations % obligations

R% Discount rate 05 (1,661) (0.5) 1,837

AREER Future salary increase 05 1,847 (0.5) (1,684)
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

28. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligation
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognized in the consolidated income statement in

BT respect of the scheme are as follows:

(B FT) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
& BRI A AN Current service cost 656 918
FLERR Interest cost 497 550
e yAIE= 5 Net benefit expenses 1,153 1,468

ERENETMEEENATHEZE

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of

AT - the plan assets are as follows:
2014
WEERARNERAK TARRERENETEEA/ (FR)
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
ARgt B
BRgl  BREL
El Ell
BEED  RE%E AR
Actuarial  Actuarial kS
itA changes  changes Nt
e arising arising Subtotal
Subtotal from from included
RED BERA  FEFE  incudedin  CHER changesin  changesin  EEHEE inother  EXfF  ENEE =
At beginning Senvice Net the income Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experience comprehensive  Contribution Exchange =t-f
of year cost interest ~~ statement paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment 31 Mar
150 Group (g31)
(B%F1)  (HKS000) (Restated)
TEER  Defined benefit
\is Obligations 43657 65 79 1,455 (3285) (186) (1,108) 209 (1072) - (75) 40,000
HEEE  Fainalued
LTE plan assets (1699) - (302 (302 328 - - (108) (108) (3222) 30 (16,966)
il Bengfit liabilty 26,668 65 497 1,153 - (186) (1,10) 111 (1,180) (3222) (375) 23034
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

213
MEERABNERRRA TARMAENENET BT/ (BB
Pension cost charged to the income statement Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
ARgst 8%
BRgL  BREL
El Bl
BE2E  RERE HALM
Actuarial  Actuarial 2EbE
A changes  changes it
WER N arising arising Subtotal
Subtotal from from included
REQ BERE  FEFE  incudedin  BHEF  changesin  changesin  EERER inother  EXfF  ENEE =
At beginning Senvice Net  the income Benefit ~ demographic financial  Experience comprehensive  Contribution ~ Exchange =t-f
of year cost interest ~~ statement paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment 31 Mar
158 Group (ge5)  ged)  (4sE)  (mER)  (mEA)  (BEH)  (§ER)  (®ER) (&) (HE)  (BEN) (85
(BEFT)  (HKSO00) (Restated) ~ (Restated) ~ (Restafed)  (Restated)  (Restafed)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restafed)  (Restated)  (Restated)
TERA  Defined benefi
B obligations 45009 918 842 1,760 (3348) 169 - (1,143) 5% - (340) 43657
HEEE  Fairvelueof
LTE plan assets (16,8%3) - (29) (292) 3348 - - 68 68 (3434) 164 (16999)
BHAR Benefit liabilty 8176 918 550 1468 - 169 - (1,075) 624 (3434) (176) 26,658

HE_Z-MNF=A=+—HILFE
AHEIBEE 2 BERREIRAE% 302,000 7T
ZE—=%F : B¥292,0007T) °

AREN 8 EEREL ATETENSR

The actual return in the plan assets for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$302,000 (2013: HK$292,000).

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of the

U Group are as follows:
2014 2013
ReRFEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22% 26%
AT A Equity instruments 64% 55%
BEEIA Debt instruments 14% 19%
100% 100%

134
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

year.

29.DEFERRED TAX

reporting period was 15 years (2013: 16 years).

The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$3,150,000 (2013:
HK$3,399,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next financial

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows:
EEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
M

rEE Group BE Withholding et
CEEFIT) (HK$°000) Provisions tax Total
N-ZE——FmMA—H At 1 April 2012 10 10,776 10,786
REFRRZR Deferred tax charged/(credited)

kR (GTA) ZIEIE to the income statement

TIBFRE (it 11) during the year, net (note 11) (37) 3,592 3,555
B ARARFE Withholding tax on repatriation

R of earnings from subsidiaries - (3,266) (3,266)
ME Exchange realignment 27 (92) (65)
RZZE—=F=A=+—H  At31 March 2013

;ZF-=FH—H and 1 April 2013 - 11,010 11,010
AFE R EE R Deferred tax charged

ZIRFERIA to the income statement

SFE (1L during the year, net (note 11) 236 3,619 3,755
BB R R FABFNEZ Withholding tax on repatriation

I of earnings from subsidiaries - (2,896) (2,896)
bE Exchange realignment - (133) (133)
R-ZE—E=A=4+—H  Gross deferred tax liabilities recognized

ZERINGRE MR & in the consolidated statement of

BEIEFIEAERE financial position at 31 March 2014 236 11,500 11,736

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets
KEH Group BiE BIEEE st
(GE¥For) (HK$°000) Provisions Tax losses Total
N-E——€FmA—A At 1 April 2012
REZRRERNR Deferred tax charged 65,559 14,511 80,070

ZIRIERIA to the income statement

FEE(BEE1L) during the year, net (note 11) (3,378) (423) (3,801)
bE Exchange realignment 254 55 309
RZZE—=F=RA=+—H  At31 March 2013

E—TE—=FmMA—H and 1 April 2013 62,435 14,143 76,578
REFE IR R IR Deferred tax charged

ZIRERIA to the income statement

SEER(MAE11) during the year, net (note 11) (244) (7,253) (7,497)
ME B Exchange realignment 1,141 259 1,400
RZZE—MFE=A=+—H  Gross deferred tax assets recognized

2 ERRERE AR R in the consolidated statement of

BIERIEEERE financial position at 31 March 2014 63,332 7,149 70,481

RAKBZHRABRERELER/E
#£281,2080007C( —ZF — =4 : B
273,669,0007T ) KR 7 B K BE 7% 78
#:98,091,0007L( =& — = F : B
99,890,0007T) + AIHIKHER IS LRI Z
NE B ZERBUER] - B —F—
F=A=1T—BHRBRZERBETE
AR AR FIR A B A BE A R B R
TEE18/E% 28,596,000 TL(ZE— =4 :
7B161,620,0007T)50 » BHREBAAFIE
BISEBE-RER - WEEHERN G
F R KR AREE - BUBRLZFER
HEREERIREE - EARFERRLEHIA
EBET - B1EE¥69,495000T(=F
—=4F : B¥38,270,0007T) BV IAEHE
RN IR RE SRR FREE - KAl
EER]LAEREIRE -

136 muEmERAF 2014 F£35

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$281,208,000
(2013: HK$273,669,000) and in Mainland China of HK$98,091,000
(2013: HK$99,890,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except
for tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$28,596,000 (2013:
HK$61,620,000) as at 31 March 2014 to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of HK$69,495,000 (2013: HK$38,270,000) that will expire within five
years from the date losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

29 EERIIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RIBEHERAAEBL ﬁAEP.KB;EﬁZi
HSNE B ERINEREE TR SRS
BI0%HMEN B -—FFEN\F—H—
BRAERTERANR _ZZTLF+_-A
=+ —REREE R T o fifioh B 2SN
?xé%ﬁﬁﬁj/ﬂiélulﬁﬁm%ﬂ #) - Bl
BB R EEMINERRE - REER
EWE’J ARMER5% 3 10% °

AN - ARIB A IEHABED] - RIEARM
JE REER IR 2 BB A AU 20% 1
B o Btk - AEBAERN BBKINZ
LM B A B EE A RO N PR B 2 BB A
I

A—E—FE=A=1+—8 £5EH
FrAFp B K K 3L RO BT BB A RIAR BE R BE
s A A AT N AR R E R e - B
BRERZEANEREEZZRBESEY
75 #800,084,000 L ( —F—=4F : &
#752,949,0007T) - EERA - ZE
B A R ARRTRER Al AR A E R =
TTN\F—A—BERIZEF -

R —ZR-NE=ZA=+—H - WEHE
MEMELEZ R BRI B QR
BN EREAEMRERAELT
HIHE ES HAE 48,087,000t (=
T—=% : A%49,164,0007T) °

AN B[R B BRR 3 2 BB 3 SR AT AR P
BHFE -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were 5%
or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a 20%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to non-resident
shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Taiwan in
respect of earnings generated.

At 31 March 2014, no deferred tax has been recognized for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China,
of which the aggregate amount of temporary differences has not
been recognized totalled approximately HK$800,084,000 (2013:
HK$752,949,000). In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute their earnings accrued after 1
January 2008 in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in subsidiaries established in Taiwan
for which deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax have
not been recognized totalled approximately HK$48,087,000 (2013:
HK$49,164,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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31 March 2014

30. &2 30. SHARE CAPITAL

(B FT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
JERE Authorized:
1,000,000,000 A& & i@ A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares

FRE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEITREEAT Issued and fully paid:
630,531,600 ;& 630,531,600

—E—=F (2013: 630,531,600)
630,531,600 %) Ei@A% ordinary shares
BB 0.107T of HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053

RAFEETEBRRAREEF BN
T

capital are as follows:

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share

21T 28T [ 8viy
ZEREE [ HER
Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium #st
in issue capital account Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——FMHA—H At1April 2012 629,255,600 62,926 507,170 570,096
FETTR 2 BB Share options exercised
(Htat31) (note 31) 1,276,000 127 2,410 2,537
MZE—=4F
=R=+—8H"
=%
WMA—HX At 31 March 2013,
—E-F 1 April 2013
—A=+—H and 31 March 2014 630,531,600 63,053 509,580 572,633
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

31. B 31.SHARE OPTIONS

KERARANRZEZ=FNA=+=
ART s RERAFARG BB LR
RER - ARECRN—BREE
([2002 51 &l |) - 2002 F 51 2| 2 BfR
BER-ZZE—=—FNA=+=8Em(A
BEBREIRIE 2002 F5 8] T A%
) - ME2002F 5T &I 2 1§ TR 20024
FTEEmAIE R E AR EEE R
R e B IR 2002 F 5T EI R 2 BB AR
WA FHE ABERR B SRR R A E
EIRE R -

2002 FET &I 2 FFIEHEYIT ¢
(a) B®

HABERZ2BARAEERFEL
% AT VE L B AT T DA 22D Sk e B o

(b) BEA

() ANEEEAIK B S Ak

H(BRE2002F5TE 2 EH)
SRR AR R AT B 2 A A A
2

(a) {EfEE(TimRHTH
IES1T - DIEE MBI
HTEE) RER (THE
SHAHM) - K

(b) EEHEHZERA

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). The scheme
period of the 2002 Scheme expired on 23 August 2012 (such that
no further options could be granted under the 2002 Scheme) but the
provisions of the 2002 Scheme continued to govern options granted
prior to the expiry of the 2002 Scheme. Share options under the 2002
Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants
(i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,

including any independent non-executive director) and
employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as

defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company controlled
by a controlling shareholder;
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(b) BEA(E)

(c)

140

(ii)

(i)

BB ARNEE TR S S
Hxﬂxﬁ_ﬂ & A% B 42 1 2 (AR

RAIMBIZARNEREHR
A

&

AEFEEIAL B AT AR IR
B IR IR AL S 2 A
BlZ

(a)

(b)

(c)

FAIEBIEERMYE - 55
EERTEAN RN
iR

EAAT A £ 35 1 8 52 (R AT
7 BRIEMRME
RAEMAAER - EXEEL
Hip EEFEFE IR
f% ,

5 o 8 IR 75 2 AR R
e

FL2002F 8IS - 28ABHE

F

ﬂi‘i%ﬁ%“%bﬁ:{ﬂﬂ?%%u%

SR p e AR CIPN

AT T

EEREE LR

BR2002FHEER_E——4F
)\ﬂ_ﬂ—:EIE/% ’ /Xﬁ%@%aj

TET-
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants (continued)

(c)

(ii) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; and

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of
business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

As the 2002 Scheme expired on 23 August 2012, no ordinary
shares are available for issue.
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®
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KRR 1% 2002 F At 8l Z GRS 1THE
SN - BRI 2 WA+ ZEA
N(BERHEREZBIE) - RE
2002 FETE| R AR BIEf K 0 BE
RRREETEIFT R T 2 B (B 15
Bt - BT REARITE ZER
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Bt LR S BIAARRE TR
RE)1% o

AREBBRERELZER 2R

mRLBREZ BEA+FR - 5
ARREEZERNE L FAEERNR
REHR -

BRERTENXEARANREY
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RIZHRBER - ARREZRE
BEBRERITERMMBERE Z &
RHAR (I E) °

BEABRESNSERAROBR

FREBEREZN 2 BR(BEZ
B)E+AXANEESEBZE
o MESENEREZNR &
758 1.007T °
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2014

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

U]

(g

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any
participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise
approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up under
a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the
Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.
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31 March 2014

31.IBRE &) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(h) BEEBBRETEEZESE

TR A T X 2 BB i
THREFBARRESRRE - H
TEERAZL /S TIIRSE

() BMXPANREBRELZEH
WRERME 2 ANQFE BB
mE(ZEEVAREER)

(i) REZRRLBHAAEEXRA
R R PTEH 2 B AMERM
E A N/NCTR = P e o ]
B &

(i) AR EBRZEE °
(i) 2002 F&H&I 2B MY

2002F Bz ERFHATF
YER-_ZE——FNA-+=HE
W o

FRWER HBERE - R EERET
IR - BE_E—=F=A=1—
HiEFE AR BIKE2002F 51 & -
1,276,000 J BE AL HEHET THE ©

0B R R R M 30T R Bl E =
T—=F=ZA=+—HLFERN"
1,276,000 Az RS AR i 1T (5 - Bfsh 31T
1,276,000 R G EEE 0.10 LA R
AIE AR AT ARFT A BT AT AR
RH 7 127,000 7T K A% A7 i (B 4078
2,410,0007C °

W=F-MEZA=+—8  AATMR
2002 H B (—F— =% : )
AT O RS
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(h) Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

(i) Life of the 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme had a life of ten years and expired on 23 August
2012.

No share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
1,276,000 share options were exercised under the 2002 Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

1,276,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31 March
2013 resulted in the issue of 1,276,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company and new share capital of approximately
HK$127,000 and share premium of approximately HK$2,410,000
(before issue expenses), as detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had no (2013: Nil) share options
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

32.RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at any time to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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31 March 2014

32. &M@ (&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
F/NE| Company
BB EREE
R ERR B
Share Capital ¥E7&f#HE HFREEA
premium redemption Capital  Retained et

(BB FT) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
MZE——4F

mA—H At 1 April 2012 507,170 295 2,904 225,648 736,017
RE s R Profit for the year and

AEFHEEAE total comprehensive

Weas income for the year - - - 41,226 41,226
BT (H15#30) Issue of new shares (note 30) 2,410 - - - 2,410
BRI Transfer of share option

E e AR R &) reserve upon the expiry

et 2 of share option scheme - - (2,904) 2,904 -
HE_T——F Final dividend for the

—A=+—HIt year ended

FEZREBE 31 March 2012

(Mt 13) (note 13) - - - (50,341) (50,341)
FERRE B (W5t 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (15,731)  (15,731)
RZE—=F

=ZA=+—8AK

—E-=F At 31 March 2013

mA—H and 1 April 2013 509,580 295 - 203,706 713,581
REE s R Profit for the year and

AEFHEEA total comprehensive

Wz income for the year - - - 31,432 31,432
HEz—_T—=% Final dividend for the

—A=+—HLt year ended

FEZARBE 31 March 2013

(Htat13) (note 13) - - - (37,832 (37,832
RERRR B (AL 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (18916)  (18916)
RZZE—MF

=A=1+—H At 31 March 2014 509,580 295 - 178,390 688,265
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—E-FE=A=+—H 31 March 2014
32. f#&(#&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
KNT (&) Company (continued)
* REGBRERETHBARAMEZK *  The balance includes income from certain subsidiaries of
AB#E 756120000 (—E—=4: HK$75,612,000 (2013: HK$89,577,000) and impairment on
75 #889,577,000 7T ) K FLFEMCE T amounts due from certain subsidiaries of HK$6,000,000 (2013:
B~ AR 2 RUE 6,000,000 7T HK$10,500,000).

(ZZ—=% : 8%10,500,0007T) °

33. NAAE 33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RIEBR - BERYEREREBE S At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
ABEWT in the financial statements were as follows:
REE Pi/N |
Group Company
(EBEEFor) (HK$’000) 2014 2013 2014 2013

A TFE=FEEMRM  Guarantees given to financial

LR TSR IELR institutions in connection with
AR facilities granted to third parties,
at the maximum 116,276 79,072 - -

AENRB AT AIR{EE  Facilities available to subsidiaries

Mz AR IRITHER for which guarantees were
given to banks - - 795,827 581,619
116,276 79,072 795,827 581,619
R-ZZE—ME=A=+—8 K275t As at 31 March 2014, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
BB R EEMRHARITHER in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
BEAEEREL ABE 141,333,000 extent of approximately HK$141,333,000 (2013: HK$129,234,000).

ZE—=% : 4&%129,234,000T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

34.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its properties (note 15 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years. The terms
of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

mEEn T

TEE Group

(BHFT) (HK$'000) 2014 2013

—FR Within one year 2,332 3,473
(b) EREABA (b) As lessee

AEBERBCEROLTERES T
MERFNERE - MERPAE
HEEERECHERRY
:1.)51 i)\i&ﬂfﬁ °©

R-ZF-—MF=ZA=1—H &K
BRE N AT RER QS RO B R
ZRIARRESEENAT

The Group leases certain of its properties and office equipment
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and

B F office equipment are negotiated for terms ranging from 3 months

to 8 years and for a term of 5 years, respectively.

follows:

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

EHE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
—FNKN Within one year 2,017 1,758
—EREFERF In the second to fifth years,
(BREEEME) inclusive 600 698
2,617 2,456
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34, KREBPNZTH (&) 34.0OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

() RZZE—mF=RA=+—H &2
A EEBARNLEBNAE(ZF
—=F |-

35. &M

BR T ROBT EE 34(b) 12 I MY 4% & A A0 AR
ZHN - REE N E HIRE & R A
T

R-ZF-—MOFE=ZA=+—H BRX
SERNTREAERZEY TEREY
ERNERBBZENRESLNE
#24,987,000( —F —=4F: B
102,986,0007T) °

RIZ-—NFE=A=+—0  BRL%
BERPBEAEBE WX  BE MR
B DRNERBHBZERAESHY
7B# 10,593,000 T(—ZF—=4% : B
897,000 7T) °

R-ZE—WME=A=+—0 ' A28t
HEARNEE(ZE—=F &) -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

(c) As at 31 March 2014, the Company had no significant operating
lease commitments (2013: Nil).

.COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$24,987,000 (2013: HK$102,986,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital commitments, which were
contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$10,593,000 (2013: HK$897,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had no significant commitments
(2013: Nil).
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FR - BRAMEBIwRE AT PR
BRN  REBEBUTHBEATR
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) AREEAE 35,896,000 (=&

— =4 : A% 37,579,0007T) M —
Ba AR B R E AT IR 2 48
HEEZEGREE R -

B AEBM—BERT - B
REHM ORI BR A A ([EER
) - LAEEAE®S,512,0007T(=
T— =4 : 57 137,0000)BE
[RIE - £ - RS IMAREE
ZIBEER S o

BEELREERELE(MALR
ARBZEE) MEEEEZHE
AN FIRERARREEERERD
L 2BMBA) AHEFERE
EARRFBRRAE £80% 2 RE
% ANEREXERAFEES
BHARZRI - FrARERIIR
RE/NEBEZBELRT] - ALR
ZRAREEEZHEENRET R
B BAR M AGRTETT -

) AEBETZEREABHB

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group also had the following related party transactions during the
year:

(@) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
HK$35,896,000 (2013: HK$37,579,000) from an associate at
prices and on terms similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers
of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$8,512,000
(2013: HK$7,137,000) from a related company, Zhen Jian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These transactions
were also continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors
of the Company, and their respective associates (which are also
associates of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company)
together control the exercise of 80% of the voting power at general
meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related
company of the Group. The transactions were conducted at prices
and terms mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

REE Group

(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013

pSEL=EEw Short term employee benefits 11,972 11,997

2R = Post-employment benefits 60 60
12,032 12,057

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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37.¢MIASE 37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

RIEHR - TRBEHNERTRZRE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

(ERUNNE as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EREE Financial assets
BRI EWRIE
Loans and receivables
REE Group
CEB#EFor) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
FEWE 5 N EHRIRR Trade and bills receivables 831,402 833,561
FEARI 2 TENIE Financial assets included
N E A U AR TR in deposits, prepayments
HEeRIEE and other receivables 26,598 24,896
EIRRITIFER Pledged bank deposits 82,738 80,280
Re RIRTTET Cash and bank balances 843,879 786,126
1,784,617 1,724,863
sRas Financial liabilities
DB AR EZ
SHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
KEH Group
(EBEEFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
ERE S REEER Trade and bills payables 402,660 411,363
SR AE A EARK Financial liabilities included
LERTBE in other payables and
Ne/mesE accruals 134,676 120,112
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 290,203 231,625
827,539 763,100

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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37.¢MIADEE) 37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

150

EREE Financial assets
EXRKEWFRIE
Loans and receivables
AAHE Company
CEBFT) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
JEW B ATRZCHFEE  Amounts due from subsidiaries, net 1,305,886 1,206,362
SO AR & M EAM Financial assets included
FEU AR X in deposits and
MEmEE other receivables 723 780
B MIRTTHETE Cash and bank balances 8,911 69,590
1,315,520 1,276,732
ot a=Ri Financial liabilities
DB RATEZ
sHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
AAHE Company
CE#EFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
FEAHI B A A BRFK Amounts due to subsidiaries 521,901 516,470
A B AL FETER SR Financial liabilities included
KEsTaE in other payables and
NeRBE accruals 643 1,676
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 210,000 150,000
732,544 668,146

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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3. BEEEREE 38. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) IERRILEANCERSHEE

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their

RIEFEE B L REEE

TRERNBICEREREET
ek tRERN AR ERER
MEMAEAE

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the
PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable that
have been transferred in such a way that part of the transferred
financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities:

REE Group
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2014 2013
SIEREREE Carrying amount of assets that

ARMEE continued to be recognized 13,834 12,625
HEaEERRE Carrying amount of associated liabilities (13,834) (12,625)

RZZE-—MOF=RA=+—H %
BREETHERSECESE T
BHEHRITEINE TREREE
(IBEFR]) - REBREMIEZH
FERRENE HERR - AAKEIR
BEARRLE®R BEEERR
MERERR - Bl - BRERERE
ERBMBREERERNT &
BRENESER - 5ER  A%E
HEERBEALEEAEN 2
BAEEAEME=TTHE - EE
EREERE -

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

At 31 March 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Bills”)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due
to such suppliers. Since the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risk relating to the
Endorsed Bills, it continued to recognize the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
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(b) IERLBRANCERSREE
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RIEFEZE B L REEE

RIZE-WF=A=+—RH &%
ERAESTHERSEREERS

#36,654,000 L(ZFE—=%F : /&
#30,030,000 ) EEETFHEE
EEMBRTESINE TRKZE
(RIEREEFER]) - EEE
LS HERNENE SRR - &
IEEREEZERMEEARIIEA
RANER - REBEPEERE - Wik
TRF AR IEEREEERE
EAERAAEEBR([FHER
Hi]) o AAREED E@E R IEER
BEEZBRBBMNBRID R KXE
o AU - AR ERERAS LR
EZBRNMBEREDERBEENZ
ZER - AEBMHES BRI
REEZBERERZERILERS
EEBNARURRSRENZKE
BRBASNEERDE - Bt - #
B2HEKRITERSERENATE
WREK -

FA - ARERERRILERSE
ZiE B Y R ER TS
18 o W W BB BN A Sk R AT
BRERE2E - ZEF5ENEF
FIIHIEL o
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

38. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the
PRC

At 31 March 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC (the
“Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of HK$36,654,000 (2013: HK$30,030,000).
The Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a maturity of six months
at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
Since the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Derecognized Endorsed Bills, it has
derecognized the full carrying amounts of the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal
to their carrying amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are
not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or loss on
the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills. No gains
or losses were recognized from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made
evenly throughout the year.
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39.OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group entered into master netting agreements and similar

agreements with its sales agents. The agreements provided the Group

with rights to set off that are enforceable and exercisable when the

receivables were overdue.

Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements are set out as follows:

As at 31 March 2013

REEmK
RRREHN  AREHE
EER MRAREZIN
tREE/ ¢REE/
(BR4E (BR)FE EESBLER
Gross amount  Net amount FEUBRRRHLE
BHERH  of recognized of financial Related amounts not set
SREE/ financial assets/ off in the consolidated
(BfE)&H asset/ (liabilities) statement of
Gross (liabilities) presented financial position
amount of st off in the in the KERHY
recognized  consolidated  consolidated ReEAm
financial statement statement SRIA Cash ik
assets/ of financial of financial Financial collateral Net
(EETT) (HK$'000) (liabilities) position position  instruments received amount
RUE SR Trade and bills
ZEER receivables 850,537 (16,976) 833,561 - - 833,561
HinERERH Other payables
LIEtaE and accruals (239,622) 16,976 (222,646) - - (222,646)

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR
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40. A EE B ERBE 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AEETESHTABERE RRITHE
7 - FIRITIFR - BRE S REER
W BEEERR - BB S REEE
o BAENRR - ERTREMLE R
RITERK

HAEESRTAMELNTERR R
xR - SNERRR - EERR RS
Bk - NEEARBBBRHFKE
b - BRAZE R T A AV E R KR IKZ
FRBHBRREN T - EREEER
ERGFER - DARER KRB b

RS

AEBREHNTSNXEBER TR
BALEENFBRITESER - NEE
BETERENRRER - EAEANERE
B @ REDERARESBR

LA
oo
ZN

o

SN LB

AREOINEERBRERTS TR
BAERAR  ARAPEARERA
EEBOFRE

o

AEBBINERZRER - ZERBIFR
REBROARD HE RRER S » ENA
X AR® - RERFeRRRFZE
HI%‘ o

EEEETERNET ARK - BE
BB RRHEENRFH MRERTH
BIREMEEZINERR  WERE -
GERBEDPEAINER R -
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables, accruals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers taking measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in
operations in Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchase transactions denominated in United States dollars ("US$"),
Renminbi ("RMB”), Japanese yen ("JPY"”) and New Taiwanese dollars
("NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in transactions
denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and its investments in
Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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40. cMEAKREEBERBEK (#) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

SN RS (F) Foreign currency risk (continued)
TR S B BRB AT E I RS
HEHR(EMBEEME SR TENE
MT)EEL - ARKE - HERF A
[EXMEEAEEHNGRE (HRE
KEERBBHATEES) -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$, RMB, JPY
and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

SN FE R BB A A
#hn,CGRd) OGRS =
Increase/ Increase/ 3gin (R4 ) *
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
CEMFor) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2014
MARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 66,879 -
M A REEE T (E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (66,879) -
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 3,443 -
MARBEHETIE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (3,443) -
fiw B BB T AE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (2,434) -
fi) B BB T B If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 2,434 -
W¥r e B ETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (4,766) -
¥ & ETTEE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 4,766 -
2013
W A REEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 66,480 -
i AR EESEE TR B If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (66,480) -
MARBLHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 4,384 -
WA REEETTEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (4,384) -
fi B B8 LA If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (5,543) -
fied B BB TR (B If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 5,543 -
¥ & ETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (4,648) -
WS HETRE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 4,648 -

o TREREEN

EEEEERAT 2014 FiR

*  Excluding retained profits
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40. AR EEBERBEK (#) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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AEERMERMEE (BERS MR
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Ry > WEFERREHRER - FHEE
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POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored
by management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at the end of each
reporting period, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to
impairment is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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40. ¢ EMREEREREE (£) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESRR(Z) Liquidity risk (continued)
FEENEREBE(BEXIABE) N The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
HERGRE FTHRITEREN ) B 2 contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
IR DT - contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2014

=EANUL

=EAR Rt+t=@EAR
HIRER More than 3

Less than 3 months and
rEH Group months or less than wst
CEETFor) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
BB ZNEERHI Trade and bills payables 346,481 56,179 402,660
RRAHMEMERE  Financial liabilities included in
JEzTBEMNSRIAME  other payables and accruals 134,676 - 134,676
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 290,203 - 290,203
M THE=EFEEM  Guarantees given to financial institutions
RIEGLVBEED in connection with facilities granted to
BR - SRR third parties, at the maximum 116,276 - 116,276
887,636 56,179 943815
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
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REBESRR(Z) Liquidity risk (continued)
2013
=@EAULER
=@AR +T=@BAR
RIRER More than 3
Less than 3 months and
AEH Group months or less than st
CEETT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
FENE 5 M FEERX Trade and bills payables 340,186 71,177 411,363
FOAE A (- BR R & Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENsREE other payables and accruals 120,112 - 120,112
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 231,625 - 231,625
METE=EREE Guarantees given to financial institutions
TR AR I TSRS Y in connection with facilities granted to
BR &AEE third parties, at the maximum 79,072 - 79,072
770,995 71,177 842,172
ZEARTIRER
Less than 3 months
bS] Company or on demand
(BB FT) (HK$°000) 2014 2013
JEAH I B A A BR TR Amounts due to subsidiaries 521,901 516,470
SO AE A R BRI Financial liabilities included in
ErrEaENeraE other payables and accruals 643 1,676
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 210,000 150,000
REMBAER A Facilities available to subsidiaries for
FEMmMREAIIRT which guarantees were given
HIFER to banks 795,827 581,619
1,528,371 1,249,765

EEEEARAT 2014 FiHR
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2014

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

41.

42.

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2013.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current
assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due
to the adoption of revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and balances
in the financial statements have been revised to comply with the
new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
and restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment, and a third statement of financial position as at
1 April 2012 has been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
board of directors on 25 June 2014.
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2014

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

P NS 2]
B S 28T EZEDL
Ri&EE RAEE Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
YNGR registration issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BiERE
Held indirectly
RN BR AT W =N TR 100 SHE B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited @ 14 % 50,000,000 7T plastic injection
NT$50,000,000 moulding machines
EHEREB Rt REE Bl 2,100,000 100 BUEREERTEA
CRID BR AR LG PR B K B US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM PRC/ of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ®® Mainland China
EHNEEERBEBERAR BB =Rl 100 REFBEREERS
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited B2 T and management
HK$2 services
BHTIERECRYD Bl 4,000,000 7T 100 FAEME
BRAROO R B KR US$4,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park PRC/
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ¥ ® Mainland China
EHEYRHERR AR B Tmp A2 T 100 R R ERRTS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited EIGERERIERR D @ - logistics services
7 5,000,000 7T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
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b N ES 2 S
IRV 3t 28T EEEIE
REREmE BRAmEE, Percentage
Place of BRER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NGIECE registration issued share/ to the FTEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
R AR LA e TmA AR 2 T 100 SHE B
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited EINERRERGS - plastic injection
78 % 50,000,000 7T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$50,000,000
EHEERE ORI g, 75 ¥ 24,000,000 7T 100 RS 2 H & BT
BRARO@E alEipN HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong Mechanical and PRC/ of tie bars
Electrical Equipment Mainland China
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @@ ®)
BN (2R ARAT VWO gl 8,010,000 7T 100 BUE NHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery AR R B US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
(Ningbo) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited ®@® Mainland China moulding machines
BT ORI AR AT V@O FE 17,130,000t 100 BUE IHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery e N7 US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited & @ ® Mainland China moulding machines
BB O BRI T = =gl 100 RS R IH T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Taiwan Company, Limited @ ¥ & 165,000,000 7T of plastic injection
NT$165,000,000 moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2014

¥INNEES S
RV At 28T ERBEDL
REEHE BRAmEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
YNCIECE registration issued share/ to the FTEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
EHBERAEFR AR e Tk 100 HERBHEA
Chen Hsong Precision Mould Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
Company Limited 7E# 4,410,000 7T precision moulds
HK$4,410,000
BHEEHE ORI ARRF @O HEl 7% 10,000,000 7T 100 SHEFA
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing AR K HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited @@ ® Mainland China moulding machines
EERRAR AT HAE Tk 100 SHE T B
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
B2 T plastic injection
HK$2 moulding machines
BhLTIEEE EEE hE 7,300,000 % 7T 100 B MRS T
AR AR O@6 FR B K US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company Limited ® @ ®)
BB TH B B S A, e 7,900,000 37T 100 BLE N IHE T B
BRARW@O AR K US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Precision Machinery
Company, Limited ©@®
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FUNEIES Sl
s 2817 EEEIE
REREmE BRAmEE, Percentage
Place of BRER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NGIECE registration issued share/ to the FTEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
BB E A B R FE, 3,000,000 7T 100  BUERIEERBSE
BRARV@®O FR B R B US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-ltaly Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Mainland China
Company, Limited W@ ®
Y BERETRE e, 12,000,000 100 SLERHERMT
BRAR@@O ey N7 US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision PRC/ of casting parts

Equipment Limited @ ®®

Hit -

Mainland China

Notes:

(1) HFERRIRINEEEDRE -

(1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) WERRA/PINGELEDRE - (2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(3) EERERRLERN A ZRHIREFBESRE - (3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to

ERERRAG LREREZREENNE
BEWEIEBENE 2B

vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of
capital in a winding-up.

(4) HEXARBBEHET - (4) English company names are translated for identification purpose only.
(5) WERARFERBBLKEETAME BT LK (5) These companies are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

GRS ER O R bR B ATE -

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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hFEMBGHE

Five-Year Financial Summary

AT AREEASEBEREAMRFED
R RBEZ IV BHRROES  BE
BERIFERE -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements, is set out below.

£

BE=H=1—HIFE

RESULTS

Year ended 31 March

(EEFr) (HK$'000) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
U zs Revenue 1,846,175 1,793,552 1838394 2423528 1,806,334
i m A Profit from operating activities 104,762 123,014 205,587 417,340 204,415
BERA Finance costs (5,469) (5,610) (4,607) (2,001) (1,856)
JEIEREE A A Share of profits less losses
i R ET 18 of associates 6,638 3,731 752 6,325 6,137
BRE AR Profit before tax 105,931 121,135 201,732 421,574 208,696
FIE#x Income tax expense (24,334) (16,325) (41,928) (75,101) (54,778)
REHEF Profit for the year 81,597 104,810 159,804 346,473 153,918
BN Attributable to:
RARERFEA Equity holders of the Company 81,368 103,933 160,334 343,263 153,500
IR Non-controlling interests 229 877 (530) 3,210 418
81,597 104,810 159,804 346,473 153,918

BE > BERFERER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=A=+—H As at 31 March
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(&E5) (ggE5)
(EEFT) (HK$'000) (Restated)  (Restated)
BERE Total assets 3,896,487 3,804,862 3,762,347  3,832,536* 3,493,038*
BERE Total liabilities (981,473) (932,283) (934,612) (1,056,008)* (1,014,828)*
By ey Non-controlling interests (19,888) (19,326) (18,380) (18,198)* (14,144)*
2,895,126 2,853,253 2,809,355 2,758,330  2,464,066"
tOREEEEE-A=F+—HR=T— #  Comparative figures of liabilities for the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31

FZA=+t-BILFEZBEEHLEA
FUEEBEINURRRAE LG LR
F19RQROINMIEN - AAEZRAULME
WAEE -

March 2010 have not been restated to reflect the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011)
as the directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable to do so.
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REEEERAT
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

EEMANH A THEMAREH13E155
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

EE5E / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{8 / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

41k / Website: www.chenhsong.com.hk
EEHf / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com.hk
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